
9:00 a.m. 

January 08, 2021



           SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MEETING 
Committee of the Whole  

Friday, January 8, 2021 
9:00 a.m. 

Virtual Meeting 
 

AGENDA 
 

1. Call to Order 

2. Invocation  

3. Installation of New Members  

4. Installation of Board Officers for 2021 

5. Roll Call 

6. Adoption of the Agenda  

7.  Public Comments  

8.  Action Item(s):  

A. Request Approval of the Minutes from November 21, 2020 meeting of the Board of 
Supervisors 
 

B. Request Approval of MOU between SUNO and the City of New Orleans to establish 
Educational and Workforce Development Opportunities (SUNO) 

 
C. Request Approval of Articulation and MOU between SUNO and California Community 

Colleges (SUNO) 
 
D. Request Approval of Cooperative Endeavor Agreement between The City of New Orleans 

and SUNO / Wisner Grant to establish the Center for Grief and Trauma Therapy (SUNO) 
 
E. Request Approval of MOU between SULC and Education Farm to Coordinate and Design 

Pathways for Talent Development and Social Justice Reform (SULC) 
 

F. Request Approval of MOU between SULC, Pharoah’s Conclave, LLC (Pharaoh’s Conclave) 
and PCX Go, Inc. to afford SULC avenues and pipelines through its Mixed Reality, Virtual 
Innovation and Game and esports Institute (SULC) 
 

G. Request Approval of Agreement with SUSLA and Governance, Inc. (GOV) to Support Grant 
Development and Access to Financial Opportunities (SUSLA) 

 
H. Request Approval to rename the SUNO School of Social Work to the Millie M. Charles 

School of Social Work (SUNO) 
 
I. Request Approval of Distance Education Course Attendance Policy (SUSLA) 
 



J. Request Approval of Revised Class Attendance and No-Show Policy (SUSLA) 
 
K. Request Approval of the Revised Policy on Endowed Faculty and Chairs (SUBR) 

 
L. Request Approval to establish a Distinguished Jurist of Law and Justice Professorship 

(SULC) 
 

M. Request Approval of SUSLA Market Salary Adjustments (SUSLA) 
 

1. JoAnn Brown Dean/Assoc Professor Allied Health 
Additional Responsibilities  

(SUSLA) 

$72,830.00 State 
 

2. Devonye Brown Director of Outcomes Assessments and 
Quality Mgmt 

Additional Responsibilities 
(SUSLA) 

$60,027.00 State 

3. Stephanie Graham Director of Grants & Sponsored 
Programs 

Additional Responsibilities 
(SUSLA) 

$71,300.00 State 

4. Barry Hester Dean/Professor of Chemistry 
Additional Responsibilities 

(SUSLA) 

$67,906.00 State 

5. Leslie McClellon Chief of Staff /Executive Director for 
Strategic Initiatives 

Additional Responsibilities/Title Change 
(SUSLA) 

$88,248.00 State 

6. Lonnie McCray Dean Arts, Humanities, Social 
Science & Education 

Additional Responsibilities 
(SUSLA) 

$61,651.25 State 

7. Veloria Nanze Director of Accounting 
Additional Responsibilities 

(SUSLA) 

$61,200.00 State 

8. Joseph Orban Professor of Biomedical 
Sciences/Dean of Liberal Arts & 

Science 
Additional Responsibilities 

(SUSLA) 

$76,049.16 State 

9. Tiffany Varner Director of Nursing 
Additional Responsibilities 

(SUSLA) 

$83,232.00 State 

   
N. Request Approval of Personnel Action on Positions equal to or greater than $60,000 

 
Name Position/Campus Salary Funding Source 

1. Toni Booker Chief Financial Officer 
Additional Responsibilities 

(SUS Foundation) 

$82,500.00 State  

2. Janice Clark Jurist of Law and Justice Professor 
New Position 

(SULC) 

$138,500.00 State 



3. Chris Crenshaw Interim Head Baseball Coach 
Additional Responsibilities  

(SUBR) 

$65,000.00 State 

4. Veronica McEachin Assoc. Vice Chancellor of Academic Innovation 
New Position 

(SUSLA) 

$73,500.00 State 

5. Shirley McLendon Comptroller 
Additional Responsibilities 

(SUS Foundation) 

$72,000.00 State 

6. Dawn Mellion-Patin Specialist, Small Farms 
New Position  
(SUAREC) 

$100,000.00 Federal  

7. Terry Steward Director of Purchasing 
New Position 

(SULC) 

$84,000.00 State 

8. Jorge Sousa Director of Enrollment and Recruitment  
New Position 

(SUSLA) 

$67,000.00 State 

9. LaTonya Wright Interim Director of Records and Registration 
Additional Responsibilities  

(SULC) 

$79,275.00  State 

O. Request Consideration of One-Year Contract Extensions for Head Coaches (with no other 
     changes)       
               

1. Dawson Odums- Head Football Coach (SUBR) 

2. Sean Woods- Head Men’s Basketball Coach (SUBR) 

3. Carlos Funchess- Head Women’s Basketball Coach (SUBR) 

P.  Request Approval of One-year Salary Stipend Adjustments for Additional Work Under Grants    
      for Marla Dickerson, Cynthia Reed and Charletta Fortson (SULC) 
 
Q.  Request Approval of Family Medical Leave (FMLA) – John Alak (SUSLA) 

R.  Request Consideration and Approval of Recommendation to Appoint the Chancellor of  
      Southern University at New Orleans (*Executive Session May be Required) 

  
S. Resolutions 

9. Informational Items 
A.  Finance Update 
      1.  Interim Financial Reports 
B.  Facilities Planning Project Updates (SUS) 

 
10. President’s Report 

11. Chancellors’ Report   

12. Other Business 

13. Adjournment 



1 | P a g e
Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes November 20, 2020 

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MEETING 
Smith-Brown Student Union ~ Cotillion Ball Room 

Baton Rouge, Louisiana 
Committee of the Whole  

Friday, November 20, 2020 
9:00 a.m. 

Minutes 

The Committee as a Whole meeting of the Southern University Board of Supervisors was called to order 
by board Chairman Atty. Domoine Rutledge.  

The Invocation was provided by Rev. Samuel Tolbert. 

Dr. Rani Whitfield introduced Miss Southern Lab, Miss McKayla Boudreaux who lead the Pledge of 
Allegiance.   

Roll Call by Dr. Ray Belton. 

Present:  Atty. Domoine Rutledge, Rev. Samuel C. Tolbert, Atty. Jody Amedee, Mr. John 
Barthelemy, Mr. Raymond Fondel, Jr., Mr.  Bakari Garvey, Mr. Sam Gilliam, Mr. Richard Hilliard, 
Atty. Patrick Magee, Atty Edwin Shorty, Ms. Ann Smith, Dr. Leon Tarver II, Dr. Rani Whitfield, 
and Mrs. Arlanda Williams.        

Absent: Dr. Leroy Davis and Dr. Curman Gaines 

AGENDA ITEM 3:  ELECTION OF BOARD OFFICERS FOR 2021 

*Nominations for chair and vice chair were unanimously closed because both candidates were unopposed.

A. Chairman
Upon the motion by Mr. Sam Gilliam, Atty Domoine Rutledge was nominated as Chair of the Board of 
Supervisors. Dr. Leon R. Tarver II made a motion that was seconded by Atty Patrick Magee to close the 
nominations. Rev. Samuel Tolbert commented on Atty Rutledge being nominated as Chairman, “he 
mentioned that Atty Domoine Rutledge is in a new Governor's appointment which means that the rules 
for the election do not need to be suspended”.  Everyone was ready to vote.   

Motion passed. 

Atty. Rutledge expressed his gratitude for being selected to serve another year.  He thanked the board 
members for their support.  He’s looking forward to the new year.  

B. Vice Chairman

Upon the motion by Ms. Arlanda Williams, Mr. Edwin Shorty was nominated as Vice chairman of the 
board.  There was a motion that was seconded to close the nominations. 

Motion passed. 



2 | P a g e
Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes November 20, 2020 

AGENDA ITEM 4:  ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 

Upon the motion by Attorney Patrick Magee and second by Dr. Rani Whitfield the agenda was 
recommended for adoption.   

Motion passed.   

AGENDA ITEM 5:  PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Chairman Atty Rutledge acknowledged the public comments received. 

Name: Elijah Crawford 
Which Committee is your Public Comment in reference to?: SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY BOARD OF 
SUPERVISORS 
Summary of Public Comment: Why hasn’t the university released a statement letting the student know 
what the plan is for the Spring semester? We need to know if we are fully online again or hybrid, or in 
person. 

Name: Keeli Pigg 
Department: Student 
Which Committee is your Public Comment in reference to?: FINANCE COMMITTEE, SOUTHERN 
UNIVERSITY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
Summary of Public Comment: The $100.00 charge per credit hour distance learning fee that is being 
proposed is uncalled for. It might not affect me, for I am an in-person student. However, if the pandemic 
continues to get worse, we might not be given the choice to be in-person. Therefore, to punish us with 
the fee for something that is clearly out of our control is outrageous. Further, Zoom is a free platform 
that classes are conducted through. I would like to know why it is more expensive to be in a virtual 
learning environment versus an in-person environment. 

Name:  Dr. Albert Samuels  
Department:  Faculty Senate 
Which Committee is your Public Comment in reference to?:  Agenda Item 8C 
Summary of Public Comment: Discussion with faculty senate – The faculty tenure recommendations are 
done late.  Board should receive these recommendations in April of every academic year.  This cannot be 
allowed to happen again.   

Name: Dr. Mostafa Elaasar 
Department: Natural Sciences 
Which Committee is your Public Comment in reference to?: SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY BOARD OF 
SUPERVISORS 
Summary of Public Comment: Action item 8 R. The salary increases at SUNO failed to address the in 
justice in salaries and salary equity. We have Professors earning Assistance Professor salaries for years. 
In the past, Dr. Belton promised to do salary studies and to resolve these injustices, but he did not fulfil 
his promise. 



3 | P a g e
Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes November 20, 2020 

Name: Dr. Mostafa Elaasar 
Department: Natural Sciences 
Which Committee is your Public Comment in reference to?: ACADEMIC AFFAIRS, FINANCE COMMITTEE, 
SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
Summary of Public Comment: Would you please address the salary equity. 

Dr. Belton said he and the staff will work to address concerns going forward.  

AGENDA ITEM 6:  ABOVE AND BEYOND AWARD 
Chancellor Pierre introduced Mr. Michael Garrard (Professor at SULC) – he mentioned he was an 
extremely asset for SULC – He Assisted in the increase in enrollment.   

Professor Garrard at SULC Thanked Chancellor Pierre and the board for the award and he appreciate the 
award. 

Chairman Rutledge thanked Mr. Garrard for his service as well. 

AGENDA ITEM 7:  SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS 
A. Microsoft Corporation (SUBR)

B. Verizon (SUBR/SULC)

The representatives were not able to attend the meeting.  Presentations were done by Dr. Katara 
Williams and Chancellor Pierre (Verizon).   A Special thanks to Ms. April Brumfield (SU alum) 

AGENDA ITEM 8:  ACTION ITEM(s):  
There was a motion by Atty Patrick Magee and Second by Ms. Arlanda Williams to approve in 
global (items A – E). 

 Motion passed.  

A. Request Approval of the Minutes from October 23, 2020 meeting of the Board of Supervisors

B. Request Approval of Revised Spring 2021 Academic Calendar
1. Southern University at Baton Rouge
2. Southern University at New Orleans
3. Southern University at Shreveport

C. Request Approval of Faculty Tenure and Promotion Recommendations for the 2019-2020
Academic Year – See enclosed chart- (SUBR)

D. Request Approval of Resolution to Certify Fall 2020 Graduates
1. Southern University at Baton Rouge
2. Southern University Law Center

E. Request Approval of Revised SUSLA Connect / Cross Enrollment Agreements
(SUSLA/SUNO/SUBR)

Mr. Sam Gilliam mentioned that “he supports the agreement but want clarification.  He 
questioned the Revenue sharing and FTEs.” 



4 | P a g e  
Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes November 20, 2020 

Dr. Ellis mentioned that “he wanted to clarify that SUSLA cross enrollment agreement was 
from 2010 and it had not reviewed since. The Revenue from the Connect Fee go to host campus 
and other fees go to SUSLA.  Course fees go to SUSLA.  He discussed the advisement and 
Freshman seminar/ First Year – for connect students and the process.” 

Dr. Ammons mentioned “the SUSLA connect program is important to the system and it allow 
students to get an opportunity to experience other campuses.” 

Dr. Belton echoed the chancellors.  “He mentioned the Connect program is Pathway to enroll 
at any campus.  It has grown for students.  SUSLA connect program is wrapped around first 
year experience.” 

Mr. Sam Gilliam thanked the gentleman for their clarification.   

 

There was a motion by Atty Patrick Magee and Second by Dr. Tarver to approve in global items 
F and G. Motion passed.  

F. Request the Adoption of Reorganization Plan in Lieu of the Consolidation of Two 
Departments (SUSLA)  
 

G. Request Adoption of Reorganization Plan for the Division of Enrollment Management and 
Student Success (SUBR)  
 

There was a motion by Atty Patrick Magee and second by Arlanda Williams to approve in global 
(Items H-Q) 
Motion passed.  
 
There was discussion around Items H and K from Mr. Bakari Garvey, Atty Jody Amedee and Mr. 
Gilliam.  They had questions and comments for Dr. Belton.  Dr. Belton entertained all questions and 
comments.  Mr. Garvey is requesting continue feedback from Dr. Belton for the fees and asked that he 
prioritize funds for the program.   

H. Request Approval of Corona Virus Pandemic Special Grading Policy (SULC) 
 

I. Request Approval to Award a Posthumous Bachelor’s Degree - Miesha Melton (SUBR) 
Dr. Belton yield to Dr. Sahoo – request by family -  
 

J. Request Approval to Initiate a Fee for Integrated Reading and Writing Course (SUSLA) 
 

K. Request Approval to Establish a Distance Education Learning Fee 
1. Southern University at Baton Rouge  
2. Southern University at New Orleans  
3. Southern University at Shreveport 
4. Southern University Law Center 

 
L. Request Approval of Policy for Additional Compensation Limitations for Faculty and Staff 

for Sponsored Projects (SUNO) 
M. Request Approval of Prior Learning Assessment Policy (SUSLA) 



5 | P a g e
Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes November 20, 2020 

N. Request Approval for Return of Unearned Military Tuition Assistance Policy (SUSLA)

O. Request Approval of Internal Audit Charter (SUS)

P. Request Approval of Two-Year Audit Plan (SUS)

Q. Request Approval of Internal Audit Self-Assessment and Independent Validation (SUS)

There was a motion and a second to approve in Global – (Items R - Y).  
Motion passed.  

R. Request Approval for Salary and Wage Increases – Faculty and Unclassified Employees
(subject to the approval of the appropriate funding agency)

1. Southern University System
2. Southern University at Baton Rouge
3. Southern University at New Orleans
4. Southern University Law Center
5. Southern University Agricultural Research and Extension Center

S. Request Approval of One-Time Salary and Wage Adjustment for Unclassified Faculty and
Staff (SUSLA)

T. Request Approval of Civil Service Wage Increases (SUS)

U. Request Approval of Revised Budget Adjustment - BA-7 (SUBR/SUSLA)

V. Acceptance of Interim Financial Reports (SUS)

W. Acceptance of Facilities Planning Project Updates (SUS)

X. Acceptance of Capital Enhancements Presentation (SUBR) – Dr. Belton asked Mr. Huey
Lawson and Mr. Kestee Weir to present their power point presentation on all SUBR projects. Atty
Rutledge thanked Dr. Belton for the presentation as well as Mr. Lawson and Mr. Weir.  He also
asked Dr. Belton to address the potholes around the FG Clark Activity Center.

Y. Request Approval of Personnel Action on Positions equal to or greater than $60,000

Name Position/Campus Salary Funding Source 
1. Tracie Abraham Director of Housing 

(Additional Duties) 
SUBR 

$80,000.00 State 

2. Tracey Barley Assoc. V.P. for Online and Distance 
Education/Director of E-Learning 

(New Appointment) 
SUBR 

$120,000.00 State/Federal 

3. Tyra Davis-Brown Assistant Professor / Veterinarian 
Agricultural Sciences 

(Replacement) 
(SUBR) 

$85,000.00 State 



6 | P a g e  
Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes November 20, 2020 

4. Anthony Jackson Associate Vice-Chancellor of Student Affairs 
(New Appointment) 

SUBR 

$90,000.00 State 

5. Zackeus Johnson Dean of University College 
Division of Enrollment Management and 

Student Success 
(New Appointment) 

SUBR 

$80,000.00 Federal 

6. Terry T. Kidd Vice-Chancellor of Academic Affairs and 
Workforce Development/ 

Professor of Computer Information 
Systems/Joint Appointment in Education 

(Title Change/New Appointment) 
SUSLA 

No Change -- 

7. Runnell J. King Director of Data and Assessment  
Division of Enrollment Management and 

Student Success 
(New Appointment) 

SUBR 

$64,000.00 State 

8. Janice Sneed Associate Vice Chancellor of Academic Affairs 
and Workforce Development/Assistant 

Professor of Human Services/ Joint 
Appointment in Business Studies 
(Title Change/New Appointment) 

SUSLA 

No Change -- 

9. Michael Taylor Associate Vice Chancellor for Enrollment 
Management 

Division of Enrollment Management and 
Student Success 

(New Appointment) 
SUBR 

$90,000.00 State/Federal 

 
Z.  Annual Evaluation of Southern University System President-Chancellor Dr. Ray L. Belton 
(*Executive Session may be Required) 

Upon Motion by Mr. John Barthelemy to have an executive session, the motion was seconded by 
Mrs. Ann Smith.  Roll Call by Dr. Belton.  Motion was approved for executive session.  

The SUS Board of Supervisors reconvened and upon motion by Attorney Patrick Magee and 
second by Dr. Tarver, to start meeting.   

Chairman Atty Rutledge congratulated Dr. Belton and his staff on a great evaluation.   

 
There was a motion and a second to approve in Global – (Item AA – BB).   
Motion passed.  
 

AA. Request to officially name the Southern University at New Orleans Museum of Art 
(SUNOMA) (SUNO)  



7 | P a g e  
Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes November 20, 2020 

Dr. Ammons mentioned that “on behalf of the SUNO family, he offers for Dr. Belton and the 
SUS Board of Supervisors consideration and approval the name:  Southern University at New 
Orleans Museum of Art (SUNOMA).  The name recognizes SUNO’s legacy in the community 
and honors the donors over the years who contributed to SUNO’s rich cultural heritage in the 
community. He mentioned that SUNOMA will further place SUNO in its earned standing as a 
cultural icon.” 

Dr. Ammons mentioned that Dr. Tarver supported him with the project.  He thanked him for all 
that he did to assist him. 

 
BB. Request Approval of Agreement between Southern University Board of Supervisors, 
a Louisiana public corporation (“Owner”) and Premium Parking Service, L.L.C., a 
Louisiana limited liability company (“Operator”) for Southern University at Shreveport 
parking (SUSLA)  
 
Dr. Ellis explained “he would like endorsement of the agreement from Dr. Belton and the SUS 
Board of Supervisors. The request is to enter into an agreement with Premium Parking Services, 
L.L.C., to manage the SUSLA automobile parking facilities consisting of approximately 68 
parking spaces.  The agreement details for a three-year term in which Premium and SUSLA will 
share the revenue at 50/50 split.  The SUSLA Profit Projection of $22K in year 1, $36K in Year 
2, $40K in Year 3 based on 70% occupancy.  Premium annual expense is estimated to be 
approximately $11K.  Revenue shall be disbursed to SUSLA in accordance with the agreement.” 

 
CC.  Resolutions  
Dr. Katara Williams, Chief of Staff read resolutions and commendations for the following: 

• Dr. Augustine Hange Nyikwagh 
• Mr. Clifton Smith, Jr. 
• Mr. Elvin A Sterling, Jr. 
• Elder Bessie B. Vaughn  
• Ms. Brittani Alexandria Ware 
• Mr. Kerrone Williams  

 
Commendations – Congressman Cedric Richmond 

 
Upon motion from Atty Patrick Magee to approve the read resolutions and Dr. Rani Whitfield 
second the motion.   
 
Motion approved.   
 

Agenda Item 9:  INFORMATIONAL ITEM(s) 
 

A. President’s Report  

Dr. Belton “thanked the members of the board for their service to Southern University System.  
Thanked everyone for helping to save SUS and for their leadership and investment in institution.”   

Mr. Chairman Thanked President Belton for all his work.   

 



8 | P a g e  
Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes November 20, 2020 

B.  Chancellors’ Reports 

(SUNO) Dr. Ammons referenced the report in packet.  He highlighted “NOLA native Peyton 

Manning and other icons who will play in a capital one golf match on Nov 27 in Arizona. This will be a 

exhibition game which SUNO has been selected to receive an endowed scholarship in honor of Davenport, 

the legendary track coach who received national coach of the year.  The dollar amount will be announced 

after the match on Nov 27.  He thanked Al Harrell and his team, Ms. Terrye Brayden and Ms. Laverne 

Toombs for their collaboration to secure the endowment.” 

(SUSLA) Dr. Ellis referenced the report in packet.  He acknowledged “Atty Rutledge and Atty 

Shorty.  He is looking forward to working with them.  He is hoping that 2021 is going to be a good year 

after 2020.  SUSLA’s Coronation was on Wednesday.  Dr. Ellis acknowledged Dr. Melva Williams who 

was honored last night as one of three leaders in the nation at the Clinton foundation gala.”  

(SUAREC) Dr. McMeans “congratulated Atty Rutledge and Atty Shorty.  He extended thank you 

to the SUS Board members for approving salary increasing.  He mentioned he has sufficient funding for 

Williams hall which now has a contractor who has a bid for the east wing.”  

(SULC) Dr. Pierre has nothing to add.  

(SUBR) Dr. Sahoo referenced the report in packet.  He “congratulated Atty Rutledge and Atty 

Shorty.  He recognized two students that was selected for $10k scholarship from IBM. “  

Agenda Item 10:  OTHER BUSINESS 
 
Chairman Atty Rutledge wished everyone a Happy Thanksgiving and Happy Holidays. He does not plan 
to have a December Board meeting.  He reminded everyone that Election day is December 5. He 
explained the constitution item on the ballot for higher education board and asked everyone to look at the 
amendment and please go out to vote on December 5.   
 

Agenda Item 11:  ADJOURNMENT 
 
Chairman Atty Rutledge made a motion to adjourn, there was a second.  
Motion passed.   
 

 



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

Southern University of  New Orleans (SUNO) 

and the 

City of New Orleans 

The following is a memorandum of understanding (the “Memorandum”) between Southern University 
of New Orleans (the “University”) and the City of New Orleans (the “City”). The University and the City 
may be referred to herein as a “Party,” and, collectively, the “Parties”.  

The purpose of this document is to outline how the Parties intend to work together in collaboration to 
create educational and workforce development opportunities, leverage each other’s resources and 
ensure ongoing communication between partners.  

Recitals 

The University was founded in 1959 and is the only public HBCU in New Orleans. The University has 
played an important role for many years in providing high-quality educational opportunities to New 
Orleanians. The University’s mission is to “empower and promote the upward mobility of diverse 
populations of traditional and nontraditional students through quality academic programs, teaching, 
research, and service to achieve excellence in higher education using various teaching and learning 
modalities”. Southern University at New Orleans envisions itself as a premier educational institution in 
the areas of urban transformation, civic engagement and global outreach. 

The University has a number of undergraduate and graduate programs including degrees in social work, 
child development, and business administration. There are currently 2,308 students on the University’s 
campus. The University is one of the top producers of HBCU graduates across the country and was 
ranked at number 12 in bachelor’s degrees conferred in Mathematics and Statistics. 

For its part, the City affirms the University’s inherent importance to preparing current and future 
generations of students. The City recognizes the important role higher education plays in economic 
development and ensuring our residents have access to jobs in high-wage, high-demand industries. 

The City believes strategic partnerships with higher education institutions are critical to carrying out the 
City’s vision and mission. The City’s overall  vision is to create and preserve healthy, vibrant 
communities; Engage with diverse groups of leaders and stakeholders to involve broad perspectives on 
city priorities; Foster progressive, creative approaches to solutions; and Responsibly protect our city’s 
most precious natural resource: its people. The City’s mission states, “New Orleans is a City of Yes. We 
are an inclusive, welcoming, and accessible place to live. New Orleans is a solutions-oriented city 
focused on improving the quality of life of its residents. We are a city that takes care of and invests in its 
people.”  

1 of 3 



 

In view of these recitals, the University and the City make the following commitments:  

Commitments  

1. Joint Professional Development Opportunities:  
a. The City will work in tandem with University faculty to generate curriculum for the 

Business Administration and Computer Information Systems programs that will prepare 
graduates to obtain employment within these fields in the public sector. This will create 
natural feeders to employment opportunities within relevant city departments. 

b. The University will develop a suite of continuing education modules for City staff in the 
areas of criminal justice, computer information systems, business administration, 
museum studies and social work. These will be held on an ongoing basis in order to 
equip city workers with professional development opportunities that keep them 
connected to best practices and new trends within the field.  

2. Internships and Workforce Development: 
a. The University will place interns from its core graduate studies programs (criminal 

justice, computer information systems, museum studies and social work) within various 
City departments including but not limited to The Office of Criminal Justice 
Coordination, the Juvenile Justice Intervention Center, the New Orleans Police 
Department, the Office of  Information Technology & Innovation, the Office of Cultural 
Economy, the Mayor’s Office of Youth & Families and the New Orleans Health 
Department.  

b. The Small Business Development and Management Institute will collaborate with the 
Mayor’s Office of Workforce Development to leverage one another’s resources and 
expand supportive services for small businesses. 

3. Communications  
a. There will be a primary point of contact named by the University to coordinate 

interaction with the City’s Office of the Mayor communications team in order to 
highlight University programs, opportunities and announcements for the general public.  

 

The Parties to this Memorandum recognize and agree that the implementation of the various projects 
and initiatives as defined herein is dependent on numerous factors. The Parties will make their 
reasonable, good faith effort to realize the spirit of the collaboration outlined in this agreement. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Parties each acknowledge and agree that this Memorandum is not 
intended to create, and shall not create, any binding obligation on the part of either Party to 
consummate the transactions contemplated hereby.  

The initial term of this Memorandum is two years from the date of signature. The Parties will review 
progress of the program identified within this Memorandum annually. It may be renewed and/or 
amended  upon agreement of the Parties.  

2 of 3 



Signed:  

_______________________ _____________________ 

Dr. James H. Ammons Jr. LaToya Cantrell 

Chancellor, Southern University Mayor, City of New Orleans 

Date: Date: 

__________________________ ________________________ 

3 of 3 















 
Cooperative Endeavor Agreement between  Page 1 of 12 
City of New Orleans and Southern University at New Orleans 
2020-2021 Wisner Grant 
K20-1176; 2106  

COOPERATIVE ENDEAVOR AGREEMENT 

THE CITY OF NEW ORLEANS 

AND 

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY AT NEW ORLEANS 

WISNER GRANT 

THIS COOPERATIVE ENDEAVOR AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) is entered 
into by and between the City of New Orleans, represented by LaToya Cantrell, Mayor (the “City”) 
and Southern University at New Orleans, represented by the Contractor’s authorized representative 
(“SUNO” or the “Contractor”).  The City and the Contractor may sometimes each be referred to 
as a “Party” and collectively referred to as the “Parties.”  The Agreement is effective as of the 
date of execution by the City (the “Effective Date”). 

RECITALS 
WHEREAS, in or around August 1914, Edward Wisner made a donation of certain 

immovable property in the State of Louisiana (“Wisner Donation”), which property was put into 
a one hundred (100) year charitable trust of which the City is a beneficiary; 

WHEREAS, the percentage of money received by the City annually from the Wisner 
Donation must be used by the City to support local needs in the areas of education, recreation, 
beautification, and human services; 

WHEREAS, Section 4-206(3)(e) and Section 4-206(3)(f) of the Home Rule Charter of the 
City of New Orleans authorizes the Mayor to study, devise and implement programs to improve 
housing and neighborhood conditions in the City and to implement plans to foster the recovery 
and economic development of the City, respectively; 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Article 7, Section 14(C) of the Louisiana Constitution of 1974, 
and related statutes, and Section 9-314 of the Home Rule Charter of the City of New Orleans, the 
City may enter into cooperative endeavors with the State of Louisiana, its political subdivisions 
and corporations, the United States and its agencies, and any public or private corporation, 
association, or individual with regard to cooperative financing and other economic development 
activities, the procurement and development of immovable property, joint planning and 
implementation of public works, the joint use of facilities, joint research and program 
implementation activities, joint funding initiatives, and other similar activities in support of public 
education, community development, housing rehabilitation, economic growth, and other public 
purposes; 

WHEREAS, the Contractor is a Non-Profit Corporation organized under the laws of the 
State of Louisiana; and 

WHEREAS, the City and the Contractor desire to accomplish a valuable public purpose 
of supporting local needs in the areas of beautification, recreation, education, and/or human 
services. 

 NOW THEREFORE, the City and the Contractor, each having the authority to do so, 
agree as follows: 



 
Cooperative Endeavor Agreement between  Page 2 of 12 
City of New Orleans and Southern University at New Orleans 
2020-2021 Wisner Grant 
K20-1176; 2106  

ARTICLE I - OBLIGATIONS OF THE PARTIES 
A. Obligations of the City.  The City shall: 

1. Provide administration of the Agreement through the Mayor’s Office;  

2. Provide access to all personnel and records deemed necessary to the performance 
of the services; and 

3. Provide one (1) time funding to Contractor in the amount of $100,000.  

B. Obligations of the Contractor.  The Contractor shall: 
1. Perform the services detailed in Exhibit A, which is fully incorporated, attached 

hereto and made a part hereof. 
2. Perform each of the following services as set forth below: 

a. Provide services in a manner consistent with the intended purposes of the 
Edward Wisner Donation, namely beautification, recreation, education, and/or 
human services. 

b. Provide services in accordance with the scope outlined above; 
c. Timely comply with any and all requests by the City pertaining to this 

Agreement;  
d. Provide a final report to the City at the termination of this Agreement that 

details all services accomplished hereunder, the use of funds received in 
connection with this Agreement, confirmation that all funds were used for the 
intended purpose(s), and any evaluation findings as outlined in the proposal 
previously submitted to the City by Contractor, and incorporated herein by 
reference. 

3. Adhere to the following requirements: 
a. Contractor shall maintain a strict accounting of all grant funds, reporting to the 

City upon request and obtaining and supplying a detailed annual audit of all 
income, expenses, and operations relative to this Agreement to the maximum 
extent required by law; and 

b. Before modifying the scope of services and/or deliverables contemplated in this 
Agreement, Contractor must submit any proposed changes to the City in writing 
in advance of their implementation, and must obtain written approval from the 
City before implementing any change and/or modification to the scope of 
services and/or deliverables hereto. 

ARTICLE II – AWARD, FUNDING OR COMPENSATION 
A. Maximum Amount.  The maximum amount awarded by the City to the Contractor 

under this Agreement is $100,000, which will be made payable to the Contractor reasonably 
promptly upon the execution of this Agreement by all Parties.  

B. Cost Recovery.  In accordance with Section 2-8.1 of the Municipal Code entitled 
“Cost recovery in contracts, cooperative endeavor agreements, and grants,” to the maximum extent 



 
Cooperative Endeavor Agreement between  Page 3 of 12 
City of New Orleans and Southern University at New Orleans 
2020-2021 Wisner Grant 
K20-1176; 2106  

permitted by law, the Contractor shall reimburse the City or disgorge anything of value or 
economic benefit received from the City if the Contractor fails to meet its contractual obligations." 

ARTICLE III – DURATION AND TERMINATION 
A. Term.  The term of this agreement shall be for 1 year from the Effective Date.  
B. Extension.  The City can opt to extend the term of this Agreement provided that the 

City Council approves it as a multi-term cooperative endeavor agreement and that additional 
funding, if required, is allocated by the City Council. 

C. Termination for Convenience.  The City may terminate this Agreement at any time 
during the term of the Agreement by giving the Contractor written notice of the termination at least 
30 calendar days before the intended date of termination. 

D. Termination for Cause.  The City may terminate this Agreement immediately for cause 
by sending written notice to the Contractor. “Cause” includes without limitation any failure to 
perform any obligation or abide by any condition of this Agreement or the failure of any 
representation or warranty in this Agreement, including without limitation any failure to comply 
with the requirements of the City’s Disadvantaged Business Enterprise program and any failure to 
comply with any provision of City Code § 2-1120 or requests of the Office of Inspector General. 
If a termination for cause is subsequently challenged in a court of law and the challenging party 
prevails, the termination will be deemed to be a termination for convenience effective 30 days 
from the date of the original written notice of termination for cause was sent to the challenging 
party; no further notice will be required. 

E. Termination for Non-Appropriation.  This Agreement will terminate immediately in 
the event of non-appropriation of funds sufficient to maintain this Agreement without the 
requirement of notice and the City will not be liable for any amounts beyond the funds appropriated 
and encumbered for this Agreement. 

ARTICLE IV - INDEMNITY 
A. Duty to Indemnify the City.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Contractor will 

protect, defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the City, its agents, elected officials, and employees 
(collectively, the “Indemnified Parties”) from and against all claims, demands, actions, liabilities, 
losses (including, without limitation, economic losses), and costs, arising out of or related to (a) 
any actual or alleged act or omission in the performance of this Agreement by the Contractor, its 
employees, or any subcontractor or (b) any act outside the scope of this Agreement by the 
Contractor, its employees,  or any subcontractor.  

B. Limit on Duty to Indemnify.  Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the 
contrary, the Contractor is not required to indemnify the Indemnified Parties for any loss that 
results from the gross negligence or willful misconduct of any of the Indemnified Parties, provided 
that the Contractor or any subcontractor did not contribute to such gross negligence or willful 
misconduct. 

C. Independent Duty to Defend.  Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the 
contrary, the Contractor, at its option, will immediately defend the City from, or reimburse the 
City for the City’s costs incurred in the defense of, any claim that actually or potentially falls 
within the scope of this indemnity, even if the claim is groundless, false, or fraudulent, or if the 
Contractor is absolved of liability. 



 
Cooperative Endeavor Agreement between  Page 4 of 12 
City of New Orleans and Southern University at New Orleans 
2020-2021 Wisner Grant 
K20-1176; 2106  

D. Expenses.  The Contractor will bear all expenses, including without limitation 
reasonable attorney fees, of the City in enforcing the terms of this article. 

ARTICLE V - INSURANCE 

A. Except as otherwise noted, at all times during this Agreement or the performance of 
work required by this Agreement, the Contractor will maintain the following insurance in full force 
and effect for the duration of the work under this Agreement: 

a. Minimum Requirements: 
i. Commercial General Liability (CGL): Insurance Services Office Form 

CG 00 01or similar acceptable to the City, covering CGL on an 
“occurrence” basis, including products and completed operations, property 
damage, bodily injury and personal & advertising injury with limits no less 
than $1,000,000 per occurrence. If a general aggregate limit applies, either 
the general aggregate limit shall apply separately to this project/location or 
the general aggregate limit shall be twice the required occurrence limit. 

ii. Workers’ Compensation: as required by the State of Louisiana, with 
Statutory Limits, and Employer’s Liability Insurance with limit of no less 
than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury or disease. 

iii. Workers’ Compensation Indemnity: In the event Contractor is not 
required to provide or elects not to provide workers’ compensation 
coverage, the Parties hereby agree that Contractor, its Board, agents, and 
employees will have no cause of action against, and will not assert a claim 
against, the City, its departments, agencies, agents, and employees as an 
employer, whether pursuant to the Louisiana Workers’ Compensation Act 
or otherwise, under any circumstance.  The Parties also hereby agree that 
the City, its departments, agencies, agents and employees shall in no 
circumstance be, or considered as, the employer or statutory employer of 
Contractor, its Board, agents, and employees. The parties further agree that 
the Contractor is a wholly independent contractor and is exclusively 
responsible for its employees, owners, volunteers, and agents. Contractor 
hereby agrees to protect, defend, indemnify, and hold the City of New 
Orleans, its departments, agencies, agents and employees harmless from 
any such assertion or claim that may arise from the performance of this 
Agreement. 

b. Other Insurance Provisions.  The insurance policies are to contain, or be 
endorsed to contain, the following provisions:   

 
i. Primary Coverage.  For any claims related to this contract, the 

Contractor’s insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects 
the City, its departments, political subdivisions, officers, officials, 
employees, and volunteers.  Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by 
the City shall be non- contributing to the Contractor’s coverage. 

ii. Claims Made Policies. If applicable, the retroactive date must be shown and 
must be before the date of the contract or the beginning of work.  If the 



 
Cooperative Endeavor Agreement between  Page 5 of 12 
City of New Orleans and Southern University at New Orleans 
2020-2021 Wisner Grant 
K20-1176; 2106  

coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-
made policy, Contractor must purchase “extended reporting” coverage for 
minimum of 5 years after the termination of this Agreement. 

iii. Waiver of Subrogation.  The Contractor and its insurers agree to waive 
any right of subrogation which any insurer may acquire against the City 
by virtue of the payment of any loss under insurance required by this 
Agreement. 

iv. Acceptability of Insurers.  Insurance is to be placed with insurers licensed 
and authorized to do business in the State of Louisiana with a current 
A.M. Best’s rating of no less than A:VII, unless otherwise acceptable to 
the City. 

B. The Contractor will provide the City’s Risk Manager (at City of New Orleans Attn: 
Risk Manager, 1300 Perdido Street, Suite 9E06, New Orleans, LA 70112 – Ref.: Wisner Grant) 
within 10 calendar days of the Effective Date and at any other time at the City’s request the 
following documents: 

a. Proof of coverage for each policy of insurance required by this Agreement; and 
b. Copies of all policies of insurance, including all policies, forms, and 

endorsements. 
C. Without notice from the City, the Contractor will: 

a. Replenish any policy aggregate limit that is impaired before commencement of 
any work or continuation of any work under this Agreement;  

b. Substitute insurance coverage acceptable to the City within 30 calendar days if 
any insurance company providing any insurance with respect to this Agreement 
is declared bankrupt, becomes insolvent, loses the right to do business in 
Louisiana, or ceases to meet the requirements of this Agreement; and 

c. Notify the City’s Risk Manager in writing within 48 hours of its receipt of any 
notice of non-renewal, cancellation, or reduction in coverage or limits affecting 
any policy of insurance maintained under this Agreement. 

ARTICLE VI - NON-DISCRIMINATION 
A. Equal Employment Opportunity.  In all hiring or employment made possible by, or 

resulting from this Agreement, the Contractor (1) will not be discriminate against any employee 
or applicant for employment because of race, sex, color, religion, gender, age, physical or mental 
disability, national origin, sexual orientation, gender identity, creed, culture, or ancestry, and (2) 
where applicable, will take affirmative action to ensure that the Contractor’s employees are treated 
during employment without regard to their race, sex, color, religion, gender, age, physical or 
mental disability, national origin, sexual orientation, gender identity, creed, culture, or ancestry. 
This requirement shall apply to, but not be limited to the following: employment, upgrading, 
demotion or transfer, recruitment or recruitment advertising, layoff or termination, rates of pay or 
other forms of compensation, and selection for training, including apprenticeship. All solicitations 
or advertisements for employees shall state that all qualified applicants will receive consideration 
for employment without regard to race, sex, color, religion, gender, age, physical or mental 
disability, national origin, sexual orientation, gender identity, creed, culture, or ancestry. 



 
Cooperative Endeavor Agreement between  Page 6 of 12 
City of New Orleans and Southern University at New Orleans 
2020-2021 Wisner Grant 
K20-1176; 2106  

B. Non-Discrimination.  In the performance of this Agreement, the Contractor will not 
discriminate on the basis, whether in fact or perception, of a person's race, color, creed, religion, 
national origin, ancestry, age, sex, gender, sexual orientation, gender identity, domestic partner 
status, marital status, physical or mental disability, or AIDS- or HIV-status against (1) any 
employee of the City working with the Contractor in any of Contractor’s operations within Orleans 
Parish or (2) any person seeking accommodations, advantages, facilities, privileges, services, or 
membership in all business, social, or other establishments or organizations operated by the 
Contractor. The Contractor agrees to comply with and abide by all applicable federal, state and 
local laws relating to non-discrimination, including, without limitation, Title VI of the Civil Rights 
Act of 1964, Section V of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, and the Americans with Disabilities Act 
of 1990. 

C. Incorporation into Subcontracts.  The Contractor will incorporate the terms and 
conditions of this Article into all subcontracts, by reference or otherwise, and will require all 
subcontractors to comply with those provisions. 

D. The City may terminate this Agreement for cause if the Contractor fails to comply with 
any obligation in this Article, which failure is a material breach of this Agreement. 

ARTICLE VII - INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 
A. Independent Contractor Status.  The Contractor is an independent contractor and shall 

not be deemed an employee, servant, agent, partner, or joint venture of the City and will not hold 
itself or any of its employees, subcontractors or agents to be an employee, partner, or agent of the 
City. 

B. Exclusion of Worker’s Compensation Coverage.  The City will not be liable to the 
Contractor, as an independent contractor as defined in La. R.S. 23:1021(7), for any benefits or 
coverage as provided by the Workmen’s Compensation Law of the State of Louisiana. Under the 
provisions of La. R.S. 23:1034, any person employed by the Contractor will not be considered an 
employee of the City for the purpose of Worker’s Compensation coverage. 

C. Exclusion of Unemployment Compensation Coverage.  The Contractor, as an 
independent contractor, is being hired by the City under this Agreement for hire and defined in La. 
R.S. 23:1472(12)(E) and neither the Contractor nor anyone employed by it will be considered an 
employee of the City for the purpose of unemployment compensation coverage, which coverage 
same being hereby expressly waived and excluded by the parties, because: (a) the Contractor has 
been and will be free from any control or direction by the City over the performance of the services 
covered by this Agreement; (b) the services to be performed by the Contractor are outside the 
normal course and scope of the City’s usual business; and (c) the Contractor has been 
independently engaged in performing the services required under this Agreement prior to the date 
of this Agreement. 

D. Waiver of Benefits.  The Contractor, as an independent contractor, will not receive 
from the City any sick and annual leave benefits, medical insurance, life insurance, paid vacations, 
paid holidays, sick leave, pension, or Social Security for any services rendered to the City under 
this Agreement. 

ARTICLE VIII - NOTICE 
A. Except for any routine communication, any notice, demand, communication, or request 

required or permitted under this Agreement will be given in writing and delivered in person or by 



 
Cooperative Endeavor Agreement between  Page 7 of 12 
City of New Orleans and Southern University at New Orleans 
2020-2021 Wisner Grant 
K20-1176; 2106  

certified mail, return receipt requested as follows: 

1. To the City: 
John D. Pourciau, Chief of Staff, Mayor’s Office  
City of New Orleans 
1300 Perdido Street, Suite 2E04 
New Orleans, LA 70112 
& 
Sunni J. LeBeouf, City Attorney 
City of New Orleans 
1300 Perdido Street, Suite 5E03 
New Orleans, LA 70112 

2. To the Contractor: 
 Southern University at New Orleans 
 6400 Press Drive 
 New Orleans, Louisiana 70126 
 
 & 
 
 Corinne M. Blache, General Counsel 
 Southern University System 
 J.S. Clark Administration Building, Fourth Floor 
 Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70813 

B. Effectiveness.  Notices are effective when received, except any notice that is not 
received due to the intended recipient’s refusal or avoidance of delivery is deemed received as of 
the date of the first attempted delivery. 

C. Notification of Change.  Each party is responsible for notifying the other in writing 
that references this Agreement of any changes in its address(es) set forth above.   

ARTICLE IX - ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS 
A. Amendment.  No amendment of or modification to this Agreement shall be valid unless 

and until executed in writing by the duly authorized representatives of each Party to this 
Agreement. 

B. Assignment.  This Agreement and any part of the Contractor’s interest in it are not 
assignable or transferable without the City’s prior written consent. 

C.  Audit and Other Oversight.  The Parties will abide by all provisions of City Code § 
2-1120, including without limitation City Code § 2-1120(12), which requires the Parties to provide 
the Office of Inspector General with documents and information as requested pursuant to this 
Agreement. Failure to comply with such requests is a material breach of the Agreement. In signing 
this Agreement, the Parties agrees that it is subject to the jurisdiction of the Orleans Parish Civil 
District Court for purposes of challenging a subpoena. 

D. Choice of Law.  This Agreement will be construed and enforced in accordance with 



 
Cooperative Endeavor Agreement between  Page 8 of 12 
City of New Orleans and Southern University at New Orleans 
2020-2021 Wisner Grant 
K20-1176; 2106  

the laws of the State of Louisiana without regard to its conflict of laws provisions. 
E. Compliance with the City’s Hiring Requirements – Ban the Box.  (i) The Contractor 

agrees to adhere to the City’s hiring requirements contained in City Code Sections 2-8(d) and 2-
13(a)-(f). Prior to executing this Agreement, Contractor must provide a sworn statement attesting 
to its compliance with the City’s hiring requirements or stating why deviation from the hiring 
requirements is necessary. (ii)  Failure to maintain compliance with the City’s hiring requirements 
throughout the term of the Agreement, or to provide sufficient written reasons for deviation, is a 
material breach of this Agreement. Upon learning of any such breach, the City will provide the 
Contractor notice of noncompliance and allow Contractor thirty (30) days to come into 
compliance. If, after providing notice and thirty (30) days to cure, the Contractor remains 
noncompliant, the City may move to suspend payments to Contractor, void the Agreement, or take 
any such legal action permitted by law or this Agreement. (iii) This section will not apply to any 
agreements excluded from the City’s hiring requirements by City Code Sections 2-8(d) or (g). 
Should a court of competent jurisdiction find any part of this section to be unenforceable, the 
section should be reformed, if possible, so that it is enforceable to the maximum extent permitted 
by law, or if reformation is not possible, the section should be fully severable and the remaining 
provisions of the Agreement will remain in full force and effect. (iv) The Contractor will 
incorporate the terms and conditions of this Article into all subcontracts, by reference or otherwise, 
and will require all subcontractors to comply with those provisions. 

F. Construction of Agreement.  No one Party will be deemed to have drafted this 
Agreement. This Agreement has been reviewed by the Parties and shall be construed and 
interpreted according to the ordinary meaning of the words used so as to fairly accomplish the 
purposes and intentions of the Parties. No term of this Agreement shall be construed or resolved 
in favor of or against the City or the Contractor on the basis of which Party drafted the uncertain 
or ambiguous language. The headings and captions of this Agreement are provided for 
convenience only and are not intended to have effect in the construction or interpretation of this 
Agreement. Where appropriate, the singular includes the plural and neutral words and words of 
any gender shall include the neutral and other gender. 

G. Convicted Felon Statement.   The Contractor complies with City Code § 2-8(c) and no 
principal, member, or officer of the Contractor has, within the preceding 5 years, been convicted 
of, or pled guilty to, a felony under state or federal statutes for embezzlement, theft of public funds, 
bribery, or falsification or destruction of public records. 

H. Employee Verification.  The Contractor swears that (i) they are registered and 
participate in a status verification system to verify that all employees in the State of Louisiana are 
legal citizens of the United States or are legal aliens; (ii) they shall continue, during the term of 
this Agreement, to utilize a status verification system to verify the legal status of all new employees 
in the State of Louisiana; and (iii) they shall require all subcontractors to submit to the Contractor 
a sworn affidavit verifying compliance with items (i) and (ii) above. Any violation of the 
provisions of this paragraph may subject this Agreement to termination and may further result in 
the Contractor being ineligible for any public contract for a period of 3 years from the date the 
violation is discovered. The Contractor further acknowledge and agree to accept liability for any 
additional costs incurred by the City occasioned by the termination of this Agreement or the loss 
of any license or permit to do business in the State of Louisiana resulting from a violation of this 
provision. The Contractor will each provide to the City a sworn affidavit attesting to the above 
provisions if requested by the City.  The City may terminate this Agreement for cause if the 



 
Cooperative Endeavor Agreement between  Page 9 of 12 
City of New Orleans and Southern University at New Orleans 
2020-2021 Wisner Grant 
K20-1176; 2106  

Contractor fails to provide such the requested affidavit(s) or violates any provision of this 
paragraph. 

I. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement, including all incorporated documents, constitutes 
the final and complete agreement and understanding between the Parties. All prior and 
contemporaneous agreements and understandings, whether oral or written, are superseded by this 
Agreement and are without effect to vary or alter any terms or conditions of this Agreement. 

J. Exhibits.  The following exhibits will be and are incorporated into this Agreement:  
Exhibit A. 

K. Jurisdiction.  The Contractor consents and yields to the jurisdiction of the State Civil 
Courts of the Parish of Orleans and formally waive any pleas or exceptions of jurisdiction on 
account of the residence of the Contractor. 

L. Limitations of the City’s Obligations.  The City has no obligations not explicitly set 
forth in this Agreement or any incorporated documents or expressly imposed by law. 

M. No Third Party Beneficiaries.  This Agreement is entered into for the exclusive benefit 
of the Parties and the Parties expressly disclaim any intent to benefit anyone not a party to this 
Agreement. 

N. Non-Solicitation Statement. The Contractor has not employed or retained any 
company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for it, to solicit or secure this 
Agreement. The Contractor has not paid or agreed to pay any person, other than a bona fide 
employee working for it, any fee, commission, percentage, gift, or any other consideration 
contingent upon or resulting from this Agreement. 

O. Non-Waiver.  The failure of any Party to insist upon strict compliance with any 
provision of this Agreement, to enforce any right or to seek any remedy upon discovery of any 
default or breach of the other Parties at such time as the initial discovery of the existence of such 
noncompliance, right, default or breach shall not affect or constitute a waiver of a Party’s right to 
insist upon such compliance, exercise such right or seek such remedy with respect to that default 
or breach or any prior contemporaneous or subsequent default or breach. 

P. Order of Documents.  In the event of any conflict between the provisions of this 
Agreement and any incorporated documents, the terms and conditions of the documents will apply 
in this order: the Agreement; Exhibit A. 

Q. Ownership Interest Disclosure.  The Contractor will provide the City with a sworn 
affidavit listing all natural or artificial persons with an ownership interest in the Contractor and 
stating that no other person holds an ownership interest in the Contractor via a counter letter. For 
the purposes of this provision, an “ownership interest” shall not be deemed to include ownership 
of stock in a publicly traded corporation or ownership of an interest in a mutual fund or trust that 
holds an interest in a publicly traded corporation. If the Contractor fails to submit the required 
affidavit, the City may, after 30 days’ written notice to the Contractor, take such action as may be 
necessary to cause the suspension of any further payments until such the required affidavits are 
submitted. 

R. Prohibition of Financial Interest in Agreement.  No elected official or employee of 
the City shall have a financial interest, direct or indirect, in this Agreement. For purposes of this 
provision, a financial interest held by the spouse, child, or parent of any elected official or 



 
Cooperative Endeavor Agreement between  Page 10 of 12 
City of New Orleans and Southern University at New Orleans 
2020-2021 Wisner Grant 
K20-1176; 2106  

employee of the City shall be deemed to be a financial interest of such elected official or employee 
of the City. Any willful violation of this provision, with the expressed or implied knowledge of 
the Contractor, shall render this Agreement voidable by the City and shall entitle the City to 
recover, in addition to any other rights and remedies available to the City, all monies paid by the 
City pursuant to this Agreement without regard to the Contractor’s otherwise satisfactory 
performance of the Agreement. 

S. Prohibition on Political Activity.  None of the funds, materials, property, or services 
provided directly or indirectly under the terms of this Agreement shall be used in the performance 
of this Agreement for any partisan political activity, or to further the election or defeat of any 
candidate for public office. 

T. Remedies Cumulative.  No remedy set forth in the Agreement or otherwise conferred 
upon or reserved to any party shall be considered exclusive of any other remedy available to a 
Party.  Rather, each remedy shall be deemed distinct, separate and cumulative and each may be 
exercised from time to time as often as the occasion may arise or as may be deemed expedient. 

U. Severability.  Should a court of competent jurisdiction find any provision of this 
Agreement to be unenforceable as written, the unenforceable provision should be reformed, if 
possible, so that it is enforceable to the maximum extent permitted by law or, if reformation is not 
possible, the unenforceable provision shall be fully severable and the remaining provisions of the 
Agreement remain in full force and effect and shall be construed and enforced as if the 
unenforceable provision was never a part the Agreement. 

V. Survival of Certain Provisions.  All representations and warranties and all obligations 
concerning record retention, inspections, audits, ownership, indemnification, payment, remedies, 
jurisdiction, and choice of law shall survive the expiration, suspension, or termination of this 
Agreement and continue in full force and effect. 

W. Terms Binding.  The terms and conditions of this Agreement are binding on any heirs, 
successors, transferees, and assigns. 

ARTICLE X – COUNTERPARTS 
 This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be 
deemed to be an original copy of this Agreement, but all of which, when taken together, shall 
constitute one and the same agreement. 

ARTICLE XI - ELECTRONIC SIGNATURE AND DELIVERY 
The Parties agree that a manually signed copy of this Agreement and any other document(s) 

attached to this Agreement delivered by email shall be deemed to have the same legal effect as 
delivery of an original signed copy of this Agreement.  No legally binding obligation shall be 
created with respect to a party until such party has delivered or caused to be delivered a manually 
signed copy of this Agreement. 
 

[The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank] 
 

[SIGNATURES CONTAINED ON NEXT PAGE] 
  



 
Cooperative Endeavor Agreement between  Page 11 of 12 
City of New Orleans and Southern University at New Orleans 
2020-2021 Wisner Grant 
K20-1176; 2106  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City and the Contractor, through their duly authorized 
representatives, execute this Agreement. 

CITY OF NEW ORLEANS 

BY:   
LATOYA CANTRELL, MAYOR 

Executed on this ___________ of ________________________________, 2021. 

FORM AND LEGALITY APPROVED: 
Law Department 

By:   

Printed Name: _____________________________________________________ 
 
SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY AT NEW ORLEANS 

 
BY:   
SIGNATURE OF AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE 

 
__________________________________________________________________ 
PRINT NAME, TITLE 

  
TAX I.D.  

 
 

[EXHIBIT A CONTAINED ON NEXT PAGE] 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 



 
Cooperative Endeavor Agreement between  Page 12 of 12 
City of New Orleans and Southern University at New Orleans 
2020-2021 Wisner Grant 
K20-1176; 2106  

Specific Use of Award Funds: 
 
The School of Social Work at SUNO will establish the Center for Grief and Trauma Therapy with 
two key objectives: 1) to serve Orleans Parish citizens who have experienced unresolved grief and 
trauma and 2) to prepare future grief and trauma-focused social workers to meet the growing need 
for such services. The primary activities of the center are psychotherapy – individual, family, 
group, and psychoeducational sessions. Sessions will generally last 45 minutes to an hour 
depending upon the age of the client and the modality used. The center will also conduct 
community educational sessions on grief and trauma for individuals and families who may benefit 
from this information. 
 
Expected Outcomes: 
 
Expected outcomes are that, as a result of their involvement in the center, children will have 
improved chances of success in school and decreased potential for involvement in the juvenile 
justice system. Adults will benefit by having increased work productivity, better parenting skills, 
and a decrease in negative personal interactions. Specifically, our goal is that 80% of clients who 
successfully complete services will show evidence of reduced grief and/or trauma-related 
symptoms as indicated by a relevant, scientifically sound measurement instrument. Lastly, our 
goal is that 90% of participants in our community education sessions will indicate increased 
knowledge of the trauma and grief process as indicated by pre and post-tests. 

 
[END OF AGREEMENT] 

 





























GOV AND SUSLA AGREEMENT (PAGE 1 OF 5) 
 

AGREEMENT 
 

This agreement ("Agreement") is made and entered into t h i s  _ _ _  d a y  o f  _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ ,  2 0 2 0  

( “ E f f e c t i v e  D a t e ” )  by and between Southern University Shreveport, Louisiana (“SUSLA”), and Governance, 

Inc., a Wyoming corporation ("GOV").  GOV and SUSLA may be referred to individually as a "Party" and collectively as 

the "Parties" for purposes of this Agreement. 

WITNESSETH: 

Whereas GOV negotiates benefits for clients that result in incremental revenue, reduced costs, and/or access 

to capital through loans, grants and other financial instruments, and  

Whereas GOV has identified and/or confirmed certain opportunities and may in the future identify 

additional opportunities by which SUSLA can benefit ("Opportunities"); and 

Whereas           SUSLA desires to know Opportunities, and may pursue one or more Opportunities. 

THEREFORE: 

1. OPPORTUNITIES 

1.1. LIST OF OPPORTUNITIES: GOV shall provide a list of Opportunities to SUSLA that shall be amended from 

time to time (“Exhibit A”). 

1.2. OPPORTUNITIES EXEMPT FROM AGREEMENT: Opportunities that are already known to the SUSLA, as 

evidenced by similar past activity or acknowledgement by SUSLA, and opportunities pursued by or 

granted on behalf of SUSLA or other SUSLA stakeholders without the assistance or efforts of GOV shall be 

exempt from this Agreement (“Exempt Opportunities”).  SUSLA and GOV shall indicate Exempt 

Opportunities by the initial attesting of the Opportunity as an Exempt Opportunity on Exhibit A.   

1.3. OPPORTUNITIES GOVERNED BY AGREEMENT: All Opportunities other than Exempt Opportunities are 

subject to this Agreement (“Fee Opportunities”) and shall be confirmed and accepted as such by SUSLA 

by its initial acknowledging the Opportunity as a Fee Opportunity on Exhibit A.   

1.4. INCORPORATION OF EXHIBIT A INTO AGREEMENT: Exhibit A as amended from time to time shall be 

incorporated into this Agreement. 

1.5. RIGHT OF SUSLA TO REFUSE TO PROCEED WITH FEE OPPORTUNITIES: SUSLA shall have the right to decline 

to pursue or consummate any of the Fee Opportunities (“Rejected Opportunities”) without pena lty. 

Notwithstanding, SUSLA agrees that it will not pursue any of the Rejected Opportunities for a period 

of three (3) years from the Effective Date.  Should SUSLA pursue Rejected Opportunities during the 

three-year period and subsequently obtain benefits, SUSLA agrees to pay GOV the Fee as per 

Sections 2.1 and 4.3.   

1.6. RIGHT OF SUSLA TO REQUIRE FIDUCIARY AND/OR OTHER PARTNERS TO ASSIST WITH STRATEGIC 

DIRECTION OF PARTNERSHIP OPPORTUNITIES AND/OR PROTECT SULSA’S INTERESTS: SUSLA shall have the 

right to require fiduciary and/or other partners to assist with the strategic direction of partnership 

opportunities and/or protect SUSLA’S interests on  any of the Fee Opportunities. If such a partner is 

identified and established for particular Fee Opportunities,  SUSLA and GOV will negotiate and 

establish supplemental fees to support the efforts of the designated partner(s).  

1.7. PROTECTED INFORMATION: GOV agrees to provide information to SUSLA regarding Fee Opportunities 

("Information”).  SUSLA agrees that it will not share the Information with any other party without the 

express written approval of GOV, unless required by law. 

1.8. USE OF INFORMATION: SUSLA agrees that, for the duration of the Agreement, it will not use 



GOV AND SUSLA AGREEMENT (PAGE 2 OF 5) 
 

Information and will not pursue any of the Fee Opportunities without the express written approval of 

GOV.   

2. FEES (ONLY ITEMS ACQUIRED BASED ON EFFORTS OF GOV) 

2.1. FEE SCHEDULE:  

2.1.1. Should SUSLA elect to pursue any of the Fee Opportunities, then it agrees to pay a fee to 

GOV upon receipt of benefit ("Fees"). SUSLA agrees to pay the Fees to GOV specific to an 

individual Fee Opportunity as per the description of the Fee on Exhibit A, and so initialed as 

accepted by the SUSLA on Exhibit A. 

2.1.2. Notwithstanding Section 2.1.1, the Fees and the entries on Exhibit A shall incorporate the Fees in 

this Section as follows: 

2.1.2.1. For proceeds that must be repaid: Notwithstanding any requirements necessary for 

SUSLA to incur, proceeds either received or available to be accessed by the SUSLA shall 

be considered a “Loan” or “Revolver” for the purposes of Exhibit A, and the Fees shall 

equal one-half percent (0.5%) of the proceeds or funds available (as in a credit facility).  

The Fees shall be incurred each time the Loan or Revolver is issued. Notwithstanding the 

foregoing the fee shall be applicable to any refinancing or debt elimination with new 

“Loan” or “Revolver”.   

2.1.2.2. For proceeds that do not require repayment: Proceeds not requiring repayment by the 

SUSLA shall be considered a “Grant” for the purposes of Exhibit A.  “Grant” shall not 

mean and or include any direct or indirect appropriation from the Louisiana Legislature.  

The Fees for a Grant shall be as follows: 

2.1.2.2.1. For the redirection or redeployment of Grant proceeds from a current use to 

the SUSLA’s use for wages and salaries (“SUSLA Wage Subsidies”), the Fees 

shall equal five percent (5%) of the proceeds used for SUSLA Wage Subsidies.  

In no event shall the fee exceed $100,000 per instance of redirection or 

redeployment per grant. 

2.1.2.2.2. For the redirection or redeployment of Grant proceeds currently not used by 

the SUSLA or a local agency (“State Federal Funds”), the Fees shall equal ten 

percent (10%) of the State Federal Funds accessed by the SUSLA for the first 

2 million dollars ($2,000,000) and the Fees shall equal twenty percent (20%) 

of the State Federal Funds accessed by the SUSLA for each dollar above 2 

million dollars ($2,000,000).  In no event shall the fee exceed $200,000 per 

instance of redirection or redeployment per grant. 

2.1.2.2.3. For the access of funds from other Federal funding sources not currently or 

previously accessed  (“Federal Funds”), the Fees shall equal ten percent 

(10%) of the Federal Funds accessed by the SUSLA for the first 2 million 

dollars ($2,000,000) and the Fees shall equal twenty percent (20%) of the 

Federal Funds accessed by the SUSLA for each dollar above 2 million dollars 

($2,000,000).  In no event shall the fee exceed, $300,000.00 per grant. 

3. MISCELLANEOUS 

3.1. EXCLUSIVITY: SUSLA agrees to recognize GOV as the preferred contractor for SUSLA for the purpose 

of realizing Fee Opportunities except to the extent that state law requires the procurement of the Fee 

Opportunities through other competitive means.  

3.2. LIMITED AUTHORITY: GOV agrees that it will not enter into any verbal or written agreements or 

commitments on behalf of SUSLA. 



GOV AND SUSLA AGREEMENT (PAGE 3 OF 5) 
 

3.3. TRAVEL COSTS: Travel costs incurred by GOV (transportation, hotel, and meals) shall be reimbursed by 

SUSLA only when such costs have been approved in writing in advance by SUSLA. 

3.4. ASSIGNMENT:  

3.4.1. This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and shall be binding upon the Parties, their 

successors, and assigns. 

3.4.2. Neither Party may assign this Agreement without the prior written consent of the other 

Party, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld. 

3.5. GOVERNING LAW & JURISDICTION:  The construction, validity, and performance of this Agreement shall 

be governed by the laws of the State of Louisiana and those of the United States of America. Both 

Parties to this Agreement recognize the jurisdiction of the courts of the State of Louisiana, Parish of East 

Baton Rouge for any litigated dispute. 

3.6. WAIVER OF ATTORNEY’S FEES: Both parties hereby waive any right to attorney’s fees in an action for 

breach of contract. 

3.7. CONTROLLING AGREEMENT: This Agreement is the sole Agreement between the Parties and 

supersedes any and all verbal or written agreements or commitments. This Agreement can only be 

supplemented or amended by written agreement executed by both Parties. 

3.8. NOTICE: All written notices, requests, demands, instructions, and other communications shall be sent to 

the following: 

Rodney A. Ellis, Ed.D., Chancellor  Ray Watson, Chief Operating Officer 

Southern University Shreveport Louisiana   Governance, Inc. 

3030 Martin Luther King Jr. Drive   235 Hornik Road 

Shreveport, Louisiana 71107                                           Ennis, Texas 75119 

rellis@susla.edu     rwatson@governance-inc.com  

with a copy to: 

General Counsel 
President’s Office  
J.S. Clark Administration Building 
Baton Rouge, LA 70813 
 

4. TERMINATION 

4.1. TERM: This Agreement shall be valid for three (3) years from the Effective Date below. 

4.2. EARLY TERMINATION: Notwithstanding Section 4.1, the SUSLA shall have the right to terminate this 

Agreement within sixty days (60 days) of the Effective Date, with the exception of Sections 1.5, 

2.1 and 4.3 which shall survive such termination.  As referenced in Section 1.5, once the three-year 

period cited therein expires, SUSLA may pursue benefits without obligation for Fees to GOV. Early 

termination after sixty days (60 days), but prior to the end of the three year (3-year) term agreement 

must be mutually agreed upon by each party OR a party requesting early termination must provide a 

ninety-day (90-day) notice to the other party. 

4.3. SURVIVING FEE OBLIGATION: Although this Agreement terminates three (3) years from the Effective 

Date, and may at the election of the SUSLA be terminated earlier as per Section 4.2, SUSLA agrees to 

pay the Fee as per Section  2.1 for any benefit realized from the Fee Opportunities for as long as SUSLA 

receives the benefit, and Section 4.2 shall govern for surviving Fee obligation in the instance of Early 

Termination.   

mailto:rellis@susla.edu
mailto:rwatson@governance-inc.com




 

GOV AND SUSLA AGREEMENT (PAGE 5 OF 5) 
 

EXHIBIT A 

ITEM NAME DESCRIPTION EXEMPTED 

(INITIAL & DATE) 

ACCEPTED  

(INITIAL & DATE) 

   
SUSLA GOV SUSLA GOV 

    

TYPE OF FUNDING SOURCE OF FUNDS AMOUNT 

AVAILABLE 

CURRENTLY 

DEPLOYED 

USE OF FUNDS FEE 

LO
A

N
 

R
EV

O
LV

ER
 

G
R

A
N

T 

FE
D

ER
A

L 

ST
A

TE
 

LO
C

A
L 

P
R

IV
A

TE
 

YE
S 

N
O

 

W
A

G
ES

 

C
A

P
EX

 

EX
P

EN
SE

S 

RETAINER (IF ANY) % BASIS TIMING 

                 
 

ITEM NAME DESCRIPTION EXEMPTED 

(INITIAL & DATE) 

ACCEPTED  

(INITIAL & DATE) 

   
SUSLA GOV SUSLA GOV 

    

TYPE OF FUNDING SOURCE OF FUNDS AMOUNT 

AVAILABLE 

CURRENTLY 

DEPLOYED 

USE OF FUNDS FEE 

LO
A

N
 

R
EV

O
LV

ER
 

G
R

A
N

T 

FE
D

ER
A

L 

ST
A

TE
 

LO
C

A
L 

P
R

IV
A

TE
 

YE
S 

N
O

 

W
A

G
ES

 

C
A

P
EX

 

EX
P

EN
SE

S 

RETAINER (IF ANY) % BASIS TIMING 

                 
 

ITEM NAME DESCRIPTION EXEMPTED 

(INITIAL & DATE) 

ACCEPTED  

(INITIAL & DATE) 

   
SUSLA GOV SUSLA GOV 

    

TYPE OF FUNDING SOURCE OF FUNDS AMOUNT 

AVAILABLE 

CURRENTLY 

DEPLOYED 

USE OF FUNDS FEE 

LO
A

N
 

R
EV

O
LV

ER
 

G
R

A
N

T 

FE
D

ER
A

L 

ST
A

TE
 

LO
C

A
L 

P
R

IV
A

TE
 

YE
S 

N
O

 

W
A

G
ES

 

C
A

P
EX

 

EX
P

EN
SE

S 

RETAINER (IF ANY) % BASIS TIMING 

                 

 





          1 

 

 

 

 

POLICY TITLE 

Distance Education Course Attendance Policy 

  POLICY NUMBER 

1-006 

Responsible Unit:  
Office of Academic Affairs and Workforce Development 
 
Responsible Official: 
Vice Chancellor for Academic Affairs and Workforce Development 
 
Policy Classification: 
Academic Affairs 

Effective Date: 
11/20/2020 
 
Last Reviewed Date: 
 
 
 
Origination Date:  
10/30/2020 

 
 
I.                POLICY STATEMENT AND RATIONALE 

Institutions that are required to take attendance are expected to have a procedure in place to 
routinely monitor attendance records in distance education courses to determine when a student 
withdraws. Faculty members must certify that students are actively attending a distance education 
course.  Based on guidance from the Federal Student Aid Handbook, specific criteria for measuring 
attendance in distance education courses must be established, along with processes for recording, 
and reporting attendance.  If records indicate a registered student has not attended or engaged in 
academically related activities, a school must perform a Return of Title IV Aid calculation for 
students who have withdrawn or otherwise ceased attendance in a distance education course. 

 



          2 

 II.             POLICY SCOPE AND AUDIENCE 

The primary audiences for this policy are academic units, including faculty and students.  This 
policy on attendance in distance education courses shall operate in addition to any attendance 
requirements imposed by institutional and programmatic accrediting agencies. Faculty will be 
apprised of their obligations to record attendance in distance education courses along with the 
criteria to be used to measure attendance.  Students will be advised of the attendance obligations 
associated with enrollment in distance education courses, consequences of failure to attend 
distance education courses, and the criteria that may be used to establish attendance.  

III.           POLICY COMPLIANCE 

This policy is required to comply with the federal Title IV Aid regulations.  The Division of 
Academic Affairs and Workforce Development, the Division of Student Affairs and Enrollment 
Management, deans, and faculty are primarily responsible for ensuring compliance with recording 
and reporting attendance as required by the Distance Education Attendance Policy.  The Division 
of Student Affairs and Enrollment Management is responsible for reconciling the attendance 
reports with the obligations imposed upon the University under the Title IV Regulations. 

  
IV.           POLICY DEFINITIONS 

 As used in the policy statement and except where indicated, the following definitions apply and 
are adopted from the definitions in the National Council for State Authorization Reciprocity 
Agreements (NC-SARA) manual the Federal Student Aid Handbook: 

Attendance: Per the Title IV Program Integrity Final Rules, "academic attendance" and 
"attendance at an academically-related activity" in distance education courses include, but are not 
limited to, the following: 

● Physically attending a class where there is direct interaction between the instructor and 
students 

● Submitting an academic assignment 
● Taking an exam, an interactive tutorial, or computer-assisted instruction 
● Attending a study group that is assigned by the institution 
● Participating in an online discussion about academic matters 
● Initiating contact with a faculty member to ask a question about the academic subject 

studied in the course. 

Branch Campus: refers to a campus or site of an educational institution that is not temporary and 
is in a community beyond a reasonable commuting distance from its parent institution, and offers 
full programs of study, not just courses. 



          3 

Distance Education: refers to instruction offered by any means where the student and faculty 
member are in separate physical locations. It includes, but is not limited to, online, interactive 
video and correspondence courses or programs at branch campuses. 

Hybrid Course:  refers to an educational program or course that includes both face-to-face and 
distance education. It is also known by the name “blended” and, sometimes, other terms. 

Main Campus: refers to the principal campus designated as such by the Institution’s Accrediting 
Agency or, if the Accrediting Agency does not designate a Main Campus or designates multiple 
such campuses, the principal campus designated by the U.S. Department of Education through a 
Title IV aid agreement or, in the event that the Institution does not participate in Title IV programs, 
designated by the applicant Institution’s Home State. 

Online Course:  refers to a course offered asynchronously, via the institutions’ Learning 
Management System. 

  
V.              POLICY IMPLEMENTATION PROCEDURES 

See the Attachment A Distance Education Attendance Policy Implementation Procedures. 

 

VI.           POLICY RELATED INFORMATION 

For additional information on taking attendance in distance education courses, refer to 

https://ifap.ed.gov/sites/default/files/attachments/fsahandbook/1617FSAHbkActiveIndexMaster.
pdf 

 

 VII.         POLICY HISTORY AND REVIEW CYCLE 

The effective date of this policy is November 20, 2020. This origination date of this policy is 
October 30, 2020 and is subject to review at such times as mandated by federal law and the 
Southern University System five-year policy review cycle. 
 
VIII.      POLICY URL 

This policy will be posted at https://www.susla.edu/subhome/policy-and-procedures upon 
approval of the Southern University Board of Supervisors. 
  

 

https://www.susla.edu/subhome/policy-and-procedures


          4 

IX.       POLICY APPROVAL   
 
 

 

_______________________________________________           _________________________ 

Rodney A. Ellis, Ed.D.        Effective Date of Policy  

Chancellor, Southern University at Shreveport 

 
 
 
_______________________________________________           _________________________ 

Ray L. Belton, Ph.D.         Effective Date of Policy  

President-Chancellor, Southern University and A&M College System 

 
 
 
______________________________________________             ________________________ 

The Honorable Attorney Domoine D. Rutledge           Effective Date of Policy  

Chair - Southern University System Board of Supervisors         

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



          5 

Attachment A 

 Distance Education Attendance Policy Implementation Procedures 

At SUS schools, attendance shall be determined by course participation as measured by the criteria 
indicated below, which include accessing and using course materials, completion of class 
assignments, participation in a course discussion, or other evidence of participation.  Faculty shall 
incorporate meaningful learning activities, which provide multiple opportunities for assessing 
attendance during the required reporting period.  Failure to observe this policy may jeopardize a 
student’s academic standing and eligibility for financial aid. 

SUS Criteria for Certifying Attendance in Distance Education Courses 

Students must attend class or attend academically related activities.   The criteria to be used by 
faculty in SUS schools to measure students’ attendance include, but are not limited to the 
following: 

● Physically attending a class where there is an opportunity for direct interaction between 
the instructor and students 

● Submitting an academic assignment 
● Taking an exam, an interactive tutorial, or computer-assisted instruction 
● Attending a study group that is assigned by the institution 
● Participating in an online discussion about academic matters 

"Academic attendance" and "attendance at an academically-related activity" do not include 
activities where a student may be present, but not academically engaged, such as: 

● Living in institutional housing 
● Participating in the institution's meal plan 
● Logging into an online class without active participation 
● Participating in academic counseling or advisement 

Guidelines for Resolving Distance Education Attendance Disputes 

A student's self-certification of attendance that is not supported by institutional documentation is 
not acceptable to establish a last date of attendance.  Last date of attendance (LDA) is established 
by faculty attendance records, such as those outlined above.   

Attendance and Last Date of Attendance Reporting Periods 

Attendance reporting dates will be published on the University Academic Calendars and the SU 
Online Academic Calendar.  The reporting of attendance and the Last Date of Attendance (LDA) 
in Banner shall be in accordance with the procedures established by the Division of Student Affairs 



          6 

and Enrollment. Faculty shall conspicuously include the attendance requirements in the course 
syllabus.    

 Excused Absences During the Attendance Reporting Period 

Absence Due to Unavoidable Circumstance: A student required to be absent from class during the 
reporting period because of illness, deployment, natural disaster, first response duty or other 
unavoidable circumstances, should promptly report the reasons to the instructor and, if required, 
present excuses.  The instructor should make clear to the student that excuses explain absences, 
but do not remove them. At the instructors’ discretion, the student may be allowed to remove the 
“absence” by submitting assigned attendance work.  

Absence Due to University Sponsored Event: Excuses for participation in University sponsored 
activities will be initiated by the sponsoring unit and approved by the college’s Dean and the Office 
of Academic Affairs and Workforce Development. 

Other Absence: Students who must be absent from classes during the reporting period, for reasons 
not covered by these regulations must promptly apply to their department for a leave of absence.  
All excuses or explanations must be submitted in writing to the student’s department head within 
three school days after the student returns to classes. 

 

 











December 18, 2020 

Dr. Ray L. Belton 
President-Chancellor 
Southern University System 
4th Floor, J.S. Clark Administration Bldg. 
Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70813 

Dear Dr. Belton: 

I am requesting approval of the revised Policy on Endowed Faculty and Chairs during the January 2021 Board of Supervisors 
Meeting. This is an existing policy which originated on March 18, 2016. The last revision to the policy was finalized on Sep-
tember 1, 2017.  

This new proposal will be effective beginning  February 1, 2021, if approved by the Southern University System (SUS) Board of 
Supervisors and the Chancellor of Southern University and A&M College. The major changes are as follows: 

1. A current donor requested an increased salary supplement. To accommodate possible requests from other 
donors and to fulfill this request we are proposing that:  

a) Salary supplemental expenses change in the range of $5,000 to $15,000 annually for the endowed 
professorship.  

b) Salary supplemental expenses change in the range of $50,000 to $60,000 annually for the en-
dowed chair.  

2. Support supplement expenses change in the range of $2,500 to $5,000.  
3. The determined amounts will be allocated upon approval of chief academic officer on a respective cam-

pus, the campus Chancellor, the System Vice President for Administrative and Financial Affairs, and the 
System President. 

4. The Holder of Endowed Professorships award was previously being distributed in accordance with a cal-
endar year, and we are proposing that changes be made to adhere to either the academic or calendar year.  
The proposed changes reflect the timeline for the academic calendar year option. 

Your support of this policy would be greatly appreciated. 

With Kindest Regards, 

Bijoy K. Sahoo, Ph.D. 
Interim Executive Vice Chancellor/ 
Senior Associate Vice Chancellor for Academic Affairs 





























Jo Ann Brown, MBA 
Southern University At Shreveport 
Deon 
Allied Heo Ith Sciences ond Nursing 

EDUCATION 

Mosler of Business Administrotion, Concentration Healthcare Administration, University of Phoenix, 
Phoenix, AZ 2007 
Bachelor of Generol Studies, Louisiana State University Shreveport, 1995 
Associote of Applied Science, Respirotory Therapy, Southern University Shreveport, 1 986 
Registered Respiratory Theropist, 1986 

EXPERIENCE 

Dean, Division of Allied Health Sciences and Nursing 
2017-Present 

• Responsible for the development of and implementing the division's vision and goals stotement
• Responsible for leading the division efforts toward ochieving university goals
• Develop and manoge the division's budget
• Leod and coordinate the division's strategic planning and OJrriculum development
• Oversee the process of faculty ond staff selection and retention
• Provide oversight of the professional development of divisional faculty and staff
• Evaluate Program Directors

• Review Departmentol/School policies, procedures, ond recommendations for appointment, salary,
retention, tenure, ond/or promotion of faculty, ond ensuring thot all policies ore followed

• Provide recommendations to the VCM regarding sabbaticals and o!her leoves for foOJlty and
staff

• Manage non-faculty division staff members

Director of the Academy of Excellenl'.'<t, Southern University at Shreveport 
2015-2017 

• Responsible for effective planning, developme11t, coordinotion, implementation and monitoring of
training ond development programs for all employees.

• Collaborate with each institutional administrative unit to access employee development needs.
• Research new technologies and methodologies in ocodemio ond staff-related duties.
• Acts as liaison to university administration, faculty and staff for grant activity.
• Se<:ures grant funding for ongoing deportmentol operations, generat

i

ng proposals and 
supporting documents in response to solicitations.

• Monoge budgets and assesses retum on investme11t.

Division Chair, Division of Allied Health Sciences, Southern University at Shreveport, 
2005-201S 

• Directly supervises all faculty within the division.
• Conducts annual perforrnonoe evaluations of faculty within the division.

















FROM :LITTLE UH!ll-l �PTIST < <� F/:IX NO. : 3182211879 

Devonye Brown 

Pft:lfessional 
f!l(l>(trience 

112001· 4/2000 College of Soutl\em Maryland laPlat;t, MD 

contract Adjunct (Part-time) lnstructw 
lnstruotc<I adnlt $11lden� in conve!'sational Sp;u1ish oouts.s for the corutt'\Jction 
Ind�-Desiga«! and presen�d profos.sional development co�C<! for 
go•1emment cli<.,-n1s. Plso.oed �la..-.sroom to.struc,(on, cour.;twork, a.nd other 
material, as 'nOCessru;y. Mai�t•incd appropriate cla«mom logistics and 
pres..,tatton design. Turon:d and rounseled sllld•1m s.s needed. 

11/ 2000-4/2003 Univecsit}' of Maryland Unive<slty College . A<lelphi, MD.
· Academic e<ionl.U'll3lor, Graduate School of Manag_ement & .

Technology_
Adjudi'c>!cd iraa.: appeo.ls, inve.<tiga!ed i;ase,i of academic di�hones,:y, aud
handled other student affuj� for the Dean. !'rovided administrativ�. n1pp<Xt 10
faculty and so:,d= in tne Masler of lncor,tntional M�nogcn1cnt prognur>.
Man•s•d ihc P?csidellliitl Mnnagement lnlernShip program.

'F-awlly Employment (:<)<)l!f.inator / Diversity Speclarl!it 
Developed divcrnt,y initiatives, :anci n>G'lliton:d and eealuat:od divcr<ity efforts. 
Plamied adv<-rtiseo>erlt$ and �Icmcnt.ed �t strategics for crinc� s»d 
>!Iott supply fru:ulty py.,itions. Dev-!l�t. an� m<intaim:d !,"d�t for divm.ity 
rw-um=,t Provided ,usistan� w s=<:h committ..,� snd hirillS n=g•1> in
b<,;t-practices methods. Review<d and tnade tccommen,4rioos for rtNi$ing 
exis'li!)g etllploymem processes and policic:s. Cou,piled sta\istieal datn as 
ntt:dtd. Su])poned-tbe desig,,, adminiso:atioo, and ovab,ation ofprognms � 
sot<'i<es rel3ted to faewty emplo�t :and ,rudent rocruim,,:nl Altro�d 
professional. conferences and carocrfdirs •• -1«!. 

8/1998 - 10/00 Nafional-Louis University 
£nmllmeat Specialist 

McLOOO, VA 

lv!cruiied Sll.lden!li for va1·ious degree progrum�. Generutcd Gnd re,p0ll:d¢d to 
in�iries m:m, prospee,ive studtnrs. Cond11¢ted infonnaifon sanino,-,; at 
corpor.drion.,, cducHtional fltirs, and local caroposBS, AS$i.sled 11pr,Jic:sn1S •nd 
so:uknt.< with �dmissions, reg.iSt:l'ation and � plsru,ing. F-valuab::d 
transeriprs >Ind militar/ documents for transfer O'<:dit purposes. 'fiaint(I 
inC41llmg enrollment n,pf>,$¢nr .. tiv<:! as noM.ed. 

8/1997 • 711998 Aerotek Dept. of Human Resources 
Cclklse Relations Coordinator 

Baltimore, MD 

Devl<ed advettii-iilg campaigns. Scheduled oollege r..:,umng event$ 11at:ionwidc. 
Nego,i:ncd coi,tr.,ct,; ,vi,J, trad.: SMw vendors_ D.:veloptd training program for

new corporate recruiters. Assisted ,:,:giottal offi� witb swfwg isw�s. 
Mainini4ad unetnaljob deseriptiol>S �nd pos� !"creased overall new hire 
ratio by 45%. 













STEPHANIE A. GRAHAM 
  

OBJECTIVE 

EXPERIENCE 

To utilize wotk experience, skills and education to full potential within a secure 
organization that offei:s ad\""1Cdl1ellt and growth. 

Ap:cil 1999-Pteseut So1Ithem Univei:sity at Shreveport Shreveport, LA 

M1111agtme11t Ar.ristant (Divisiou ef Covmt1tlli{y & Wor/eft!rr:e Devdopm,111) 
• Sexve as special assistant to Vice Chancellor fo.t Community & Workforce

Development
,. Serve as maoogix,g supemsor for Office of Grants & Sponsored Ptogra= 

• University's Aurliorized Organizational R.ep.resenrative for
Grants.gov

• Review, critique and ensw:e cxtcmal JllOposrus meet sponsor and
university guidelines priot to submission

• Supervise post-award stiff
• Serve as univei:sity grant writet

• Provide oversight to poogiammatic and fiscal operations of Title nr HBCU and
Title ID CCR.AA federal grants

Perkinr Progra,ns CoaniinaflJr/ Pre-AMUd Servke1 Coordinato,· (Dtpmtment of Grant, & 
Spons,:md Ptvgrmns 2007-2009) 

• Adminis11 ... tion of Carl. D. Perltlns Car.eet & Technic:al. Edncation Gnnt to
include prep<>r2tion, submission and mainrenance of Looo Appliel<lion Plan,
.financial repom (budget.<, relmblUScmco.ts, project completion), and other
tepol:tS :as required

• Coo.tdinate on-campus requests for internal g,:ant funding-,solicit collabonuion
among bo.dgetaxy sources on cunpus 

• Serve as co-Principal fnve:srigator fo,: Pl:oject SUCCESS a:wmg gw,t
• Assist Dir:ec.tot of Title llI HBCU Gtant in effecavely adn:ii:nistering grant

program
• Provide p�e- and post-award services to uaivecity con:,,mucicy in support

of securing ener.o.al funding
J>erki111 Programs Coordi1111tor/ Ma1Jag11nmt AsJisfant (Dilli.do11 ef UJVJtPlllli!J &
Workfartt DetJelopm,nt 2004-2007)

• Administration of Carl D. Perkins Career & Technical Education C'.-rant to
include p.reparation. · submissfon and ma;nte11ancc of Local Application Plan,
financial reports (budgets, reimb>mements, project completion), and other
1epol:ts as rcquir<d

• Coo,:dinated on-campus requests fur intemal g,:ant funding-,solicit collaboJ:ation
be=en budget:try sources on campus

































EDUCATION: 

Resu,ne 

Leslie R. ,lfcClellon, Ed.D. 
i

m 

• 8/2020, Doctor of Education, Adult Leadership and Leadership, College of Education, Kansas

State University, Manhattan, KS 

c Dissertation: A phenomenological study of change in an urban commun
i

ty college 
system 

• 12/1997, Master of Education, Urban Education, Langston University, Langston, OK
• 7/1989, Bachelor of Arts, Psychology, Langston Univc::rsitv, Langston, OK

11/2016 - Present: Chief of Staff and Special Assistant for Strategic Initiatives, Southern Universiw .it 

Shreveport, Shreveport, LA 

Southern University at Shreveport, a unit of the Southern University System located at Baton Rouge, 

Louisiana, created by Act 42 of the ordinary session of the Louisiana Leg islature on May 11, 1964, is 

des
i

gnated a tv,10-year commuter college to serve the Shreveport-Bossier City area. Its basic emphasis is 

to provide the first two years of typical college and university work. 

7 /2019 - Present: Chief of Staff and Special Assistant for Strategic Initiatives, Southern University at 

Shreveport, Shreveport, LA 

Responsibilities: 

Responsible for oversight for the chancellor's Office, development of policies and procedures, Southern 

University System Board of Supervisors liaison, ensures the effective implementation of strategic 

in
i

tiatives, strategic planning, institutional research and effectiveness, sponsored programs, and is a 

trusted advisor to the Chancellor. The position oversees special projects and serves as the Chancellor's 

primary liaison with all stakeholders. A member of the Chancellor's executive team and cabinet. 

Specific Duties Include: 

Chief of Staff 

• Advising the ChJncellor on day-to-dJy operations ensuring efficiency and effect
i

veness and 

optimizing use of all available resources and personnel. On behalf of the Chancellor, maintains 

relations with ;ill administrators to ensure Jppropriate responsiveness and serve as a facilitator 

for matters and emerging initiatives of the Chancellor's Office. 

• Serves as the Chancellor's primary liaison with management, staff, and the stakeholder

community at-large.



















































• ,JOB CJ.ASS

JOB CODE 

CALID 

� 

-f±cj 
SOL'THERN l":\:TVF.RSITY SYSTEl\11 

Personnel Action Form : posmoN

NUMl!E.R 

C . .\..\fPUS: SUS SULAC 

9-MOJ\TH

St/\REC SUSJ,A ....,x,___ 

EMPLOYMEN"l.' CATl£GORY: 

Academic 
__ Tempo,·ary 

Tenun,d 
Teno red Track 

__ Other (Spedfy) 

Previous Employee 
Date Left 

12-MONTH x HTHF.R __ (Specify)

,r Non-Academic
___ Part-lime ( __ . '1/n of Full Time) 
___ Undergraduate Student 

Graduate !\$Sisfant 
Retire, Return To Worl< 

Civil Service 
Restricted 

_____ JobAppoinlment 
. Prohationary 

Permanent Status 

Reason Left 
Salary Paid 

Profile of Person Recommended 
Lengt.h of Employrucut To ___________ _ _ _ _  _ 
Effective Date _0;!/01!20.,_,2:.:1 ___________ _ 

Kame Leslie MeClellon (U01648880) SS# xxx-xx-4441 
(L�n 4 dijtiCs 1>nl)·} 

Sex Race,. 

Position Title: Chief of Staff &-Special Assistant for Strategic 
[nitiativ�s 

Oepartment: Office of the Chancellor 

Ch.ck One x Existiog Position 

New Positio11 

"Visa J'ype (See Reverse Side): 

(Posittou \':1.c».ncy :.tnthori7,:\tion form mnst be "rot�s�d �ncl appr<1ncl to fill 
c-xis1ing �nd new po,itious, Pos.itiou muse he �d••crtis�d b<:forr. proccssiug PAF, if 
:.pplit1tbJc,) 

Expiration Date: 

Years lixperienc• ________ _ _ _ _ _ __ Southern University Experience 
Otgl"W(s): Type/Discipliuc (BA-E-ducation): fnstituliouiL-0catio11 (SU-Balon Rouge): 

Current Employer 

Personnel Action 

Check One New Aprmintment. _x __ Contin1talio11 
Transf�r :Replaeem,nt 

l:tocomm,nde,1 Salary _S
:;c

8
::.,
8:,;,2e:4e,8c.... _ _ _ _ _ _  _ 

Source of Funds 

Identify Budget: 
F ·orm Code: 

CJ,ange of: 

Sabbatical 
Other (Specify) 

Salary Bud::etecf 

Location 
Page _____ _ 

$88,248 

Item# 

r '-· --'-� .. LJ 

Year: 

L�ve of Absence 

----------

Ft·om 
Chier of Stair &-Spedal Assistant for 
Stratq:ic Jnitiatives 

Chief of Staff & Executive Director for 
StN1tcgic Initiati-.cs 

Stains l:"ull-Time 
Salary Adjustment S84.048 S88248 ' 

d sienaiure (if, annJicablc): Financial Ai 
Lisi total fnnds currently paid this cwploycc by 
Soutbero University: 

Source of Funds 
511001551106!002 56000 

*See Rev�rse Side
Comments: (Use bacl, nr form) J

•see R,vers• Side 

Sup�n·isor 

� �I

Pr·esident 

525223 520216100254100 

Graduate School signatur• (if, applicable): 

Date nean/Uoi 

12{ Date 

I�3n)
-ate 

Date Chairm•n/S,U, Board 

Amount 

Date 









Dr, Lo,,nieM<Cr•y 
.A,.;.n.m-rro1c,i,o, ofllnglish 
Somhom Univ<:<&itj, Sh�"'!'<"' 
3050 MartinJ.uibet Kiog Driw 
Slnev<:port, La_ 7110'/ 
(318) 670--9]6:l

Edoe&tion 
'"D 

oos 

High,,,-Eduomioo �on ntlnor inAmorican� Uni\l<mty of 
lfotd, Ton< A"8"'Ji :iou
DL,so,talian: A,, emmlia/ a,ni,o:k program: A ""'" •l.vdy of 1h, pn<rol _,, 

progrw,, ,lllb/,l>k11ia &m, 11-rnr.-,,' "' Shrev,port 
Commit!= D,-, V .  Boiba,aBu>L, obair, D,. x:..thlooo. Whi1<on lllldDr. 
l""'lo<Jim; F=t,d:, 

,Americ.rm Li!cm!wt. loui,iona Tu:.h Um""131ty, 1999 

AddH;,,,,.,istudi<S 

WDl-2004 Mll<l. f'A\l11l<S ail<niisiall, Sbm Univ<:,;,ty in Shreveport 
Th=ie, afLoamiog 

Emp111]'1Ilmt 

lld11,;:aliO>Jal A&nU1iQm<ion; .&lucalimllll ll.o<,:0\'01,; Pbiloooph.y ofEdeofdlon 
Scl1m!Loo, 
Pnneiples of Gmdanoo and Cuu,,.olm@" 

l/12-preoo.ot Sootbem Un!vo,"11y Shre,qiort 
,IJm:,ttmt .Pn!fts= ofli"EB,;I,, o,,,;,. 4 Er,gll,J, a"'1 Fo,.;g,, J;v,g,n,8'11 (111 3)
R<,pon,lbill�,., i£3clJ. !iwJmllll ,M 110jilomore English oomscs; IJO<licil""' <m 

<lepmtm"'111<1 80<I unfvcni,;y OOntmitr=!; omo,. -� a g,mccl 
,tn,ti<o &,gree; lllllmiil.ycwly m,,pl"l""porl"onnanoo ewh,alioo,; =""' progmm 
oolromoll; di,l'clop co= ache<lnJo.,; serw in iibmoo of !ho Di.WOO Chair; 
p,iticip,m, and prn11ido oomnmnity sorvi"". 

ltl/10- 11/13 Un/,.,,.;,.y offho,nix 
.JU- Faoulry, Coll,11.1 qflfiurw,ft;,,, 
lwponsibiliti,., ilmghtFilotY= Soqoom,:, oourno,in :E,,j)l.i,,hondHwnEIIlitieo; 
pa,ocipstc,lin �IAIMMoctine,; P"'ric.ipamd in wmkr!Mr,, ond wurl<,hop
training, 

a/00- lfl2 Lonisiana SUIIO Unl"""'ltyin .sim...p,,rt 
"""'"""" ofEngllsl,, Dlro-'If c...,,,,.,,1 s,,,m,,. /Mil -11 J :.i 
Re,pOll011"li� .. , timght t.., cowie,,Jl"'" -·-.,.Jone, snmmo:r """""i 
parti,,ipmid on III k"'1: one dopl,tllnflll!!I! oommi!too; p•>vi,ld c.ommunity 
ruvi<:o; ai!1"""1 now, continuing, and gradir;wog ,tnd_ in ID<" Gmcr.l SOldi°" 
program; so.v<d .. cl.o, ofi!1', G<ii>Bral StimiosM1'i""Y Committeo; """"'d oll
grod>Jstian docwnant. Jin ""'do,,to m 1M prog,am; soporn.,o<l 11bulcnl. WQikiet.















EMPLOYMENT EXPERIENCE 

VELORIA NANZE  

Dinctor of AccoUllting: 09-2017 -Current 
Southern University at Shreveport 

• Manages a comprehensive accountingprogxarn which integrates Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP), Governmental Acc ounting Standards,
statutory accounting requirements and departmental fiscal policies and procedures
for a multi-location institution.

• Supervise a staff of 4 consisting of Payroll, Travel, Grants Accounting, Accounts Payable
• Supervise subordinate employees in work involving .financial and accoun(ing

operations (i.e., processing cash receipts, accounts payable/receivable, bank
reconciliations, etc.)

• Accounting analyzes financial statistics and other accounting data to identify
trends impacting the fiscal position of the college ( e.g., cash fl.ow analysis, budget
analysis, forecasts and projections), and advises management on findings and
recommendations.

• Assists in SUppOrting and promoting iw10vation; improving the quality of
financial services; building strategic budgets; exploring resource development
alternatives; utilizing technology; allocating adequate fiscal resources;
establishing fiscal soundness; and maintaining compliance with all financial
regulations

• Represent the Cl=.cellor aml/or Chief Finance Officer relative to the financial
interests of the college in accounting-related interactions/negotiations with oilier
parties, such as banks, vendors, external auditors and management staff of other
governmental entities.

• Applies generally accepted accounting principles and government accounting
principle i.rt the recording of financial activity in the Banner accounting system.

• Prepares or directs the preparation of fmancial reports in both standard and
specialized fo1mats

• Review expenditure requests, purchase requisition for compliance with funding
requirements

• Ensure fiscal control and oversight of college finances;
• Reviews or delegates the review of report contents; corrects d iscrepancies in

information and submits final reports
• Assist in Banner software integration for fiscal and student i:eporting
• Provide university wide training for budgeting and fiscal reporting
• Provide university wide training per state travel guidelines
• Assist with preparation of Annual Financial Report
• Act as liaison with internal, external and state auditors providing documentatfon

as requested





























































• I 

Tiffany Williams Varner' 
tewiUiams@susla ,edu 

 

PROFESSIONAL OUAUFICA'TIONS 

• 10 years experience as nursing faculty in an associate degree program

• 21 years experience as a Registered Nurse caring for adults with various disease 
processes

• Outstanding management and supervisory skills - able to coordinate multlple activities,
analyze problems, delegate activities, and develop methods to increase productivity

• Strong organizational sk\11s

• Proven capacity to approach problems creatively and effectively

• Eager to leam and apply new information and skills

EDUCATION EXPERIENCE 

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY AT SHREVEPORT - Shreveport, Louisiana 
Director - School of Nursing Current position 
Responsible for providing leadership and oversight to the instructional, clinical and 
administrative components of the generic and accelerated tracks of the Associate of Science 
Degree nursing programs, practical nursing program and certified nursing assistant 
program. 

Assistant Professor of Nursing 2005 :- 2014 
Classroom and clinlcal instruction of nursing care to students in the Associate of Science 
Degree in Nursing program. Coordinated classes in fundamentals of nursing, medical
surgical nursing, pediatric nursing, and nursing Issues & trends courses which involved the 
coordination of lecture content, dlstnbution of lecture material between facolty, designing 
lecture exams, student advising, clinical instruction/supervision of students, etc. 
Served as chairperson of one of four nursing committees and member of two of the 
remaining committees. Also responsible for coordination and administration of standardized 
testing for students. 

Administrative responsiblllties were added to include the oversight of the daily operations of 
the ASN program that inch,ded, but was not limited to, issuing faculty course assignments, 
course scheduling, faculty mentoring, maintaining relatlonshlps with University, clinical, and 
accrediting affiliates, assisting with the interview and recommendation process for new 
hires, and coordinating the admission of new clinlcal students (2009 - 2014). 

Assisted with the implementation of the Practical Nursing program by composing course 
syllabi, assisting with student selection, assisting with the hiring process of ins tructors, 
mentoring faculty, and implementing standardized test"ing for students (2012 - 2014). 

CLINICAL EXPERIENCE 

MAGNOLIA MANOR NURSl!IIG AND REHABILITATION CENTER - Shreveport, Louisiana 
RJ\I Supervisor (Weekend} �010 - present 

Responsible for the oversight of care provided on weekends. Manage the environment in the 
facility to maintain resident safety and supervise the care activities performed by LPNs and 
Nursing Assistants. Act on behalf of the Director of Nursing in his/her absence. Follow and 
enforc-e the policies and procedures of the parent company. 

11ffany WIiiiams Vamer 















































































' 

'EdufationAdfuihJstrcltjp'tl J.�a;g�!�.:§�9S� H.J . ., ...... ' . .. 
 

• • •• > 

.

J:llghly e1<p0ri��d, -;igd pa��io�ate .h"Jan�erial P,rof�o.n�\ de\q� v.iK11 c_b!!tdl�;ro�g ,an,,ifl� �i:ti.vltj!s a,nc! 
e;(eaJtitit '�J.ii;tll;loi.1'111 ;:\!lnilnis\ratiQn ai;IMl!e� Estapllsh. �ll!ll .trsl<Jlhg l)(<ll>lrph �nd }UJleiitl�e. 1'l�rQ· i\i<;(\l]\'iileiit 
!ur<c_!lOili;, $!i°4��i.\'UY 0

1Ji¥!1'b1fin°e%,d�velop�nt iilN.-.1�� ii,id �e,ii�(l;a-.°"S'Srnents,:Dfrect fi�ali_ciai �vo!t.i�orit_anq. 
t1�n�� (ly!\imtc IJQ�!r:1.�� �(!Ort.s• L�ee biUn·gi.i�I ��-in Eniill\;b· al\d Spanish to lmproY�>1t(.l�gi�wl!i!b'9l<it!All 
�rid dev.elop m.tiltii:\lll.\\r�! )l'Usll)�S�e1wironfu�9t. Jif eil�ff J.i¥•rlt-<> }11iftide�

���ki1.dll�tnl!!!'ia1miil& 
New.Process·�!opm!nt, 
Financi;i!Ass�ment 

• Qi/al!W 1<•5�$.ment
• �1ai�Jl�'lions!ui?:llt1lliiing
, Te\lm. t"r.ilJii�j.;ead..-�hli> 

Pr-6£iissiop-al E)(psriertcie .... ; . -�-- . ... ..·. 
- .. • .

. : ... ·. : . 

Repo,t.B�e,at.ion. 
P'i:'riJ�n,ta��-tnent·
f./0�,l�m·R�solulion. · 

bltt�l"f: lil�t+ 
1
�¢.MU 

·i,.�rheMe<f t�llt_pi��J\slv�'�tjMe.ht ll1S.IJ;UG!io11 iilvoMni; 4iver.fe..�ijftlculijln 'jt) i)��'f.:Ollj!ze,1:i'/\cj �r�f-(pr�fiaralJQli; 
El)g;(g�!l�!t� �\!1ti�<l)t1Jrlll}\U�1ri.ts angci!l��-oqtoo c!p>,ll.ty\llJd1�bcal �dmirilmat\lts fo fo�er�\l$lr.�ilitJgsk_ill$ �!l�
-i�p.iyY�-�<i�tli� l��u�ion�J �n(�llt. Sifp pQrt!iil Ut1lrem>f r2s�ted ltude�t.pop.u latiens: ij!ld .t.!rg�eo �m)ilel( sQ.liJect
1'i!a"ttetsmJ9ster:P.iiil>l�iii�lliing���ll� . . 
· l<af.lkx:e,!!iP!Js�nfu

•· Pelive� woi,(��lat��\l,PPQ(We�nr:A��a�t� :Jnti/ij,!'1:f il��f�il!Tl/i!te.9f Education b!ploma andAdvan�nt
Via- I nt!M<!tral·J:1�Eerml n�!l0n 16V<>I v,h!li b�.d!»'11�e all1l lh !en-¢.!lon•I c.�f J'lc.<,l�)fi, 

:t," -· Ach��-ir,!i��,p�$,S ia�,l!-'f�ntl-of��r.€Xllf" am:! •n�ag�-wllf1 $% 6J stud en� to toni�lete cotleg• r��if'!llleirt'$.i 

�ai_p:tAlill!�n.,-,s l!nllii!f•i.t;.'• ii.lei�,. fie· :i.O'rn l'.0201� 
DIA11otEiil«lu�1ef,li1Nl�6�l>I��"•' A�M�t�/.D10Erto�QFAili,0111,o�P11w1tB>. E1iPLOV<ll GIVl•l�-
'�eded-q<\�?e ,11\lv@'�ity :4MsJo0:S"��\�aii�;:fi�6.t�-� _34iii�\,�ry�, j_M: m��r"�, offl'-e: i!(i\\t �!it w,;t,egn: 
�9/11\ar.,�,a�esSll)_�t procedums and .  allbqi:tlld)11gll-Vi!l�f•��t,!>Y\[!!i!ts,t��-t>lstfr o,jl'flt;ij:Tofia! da_veli!pillllnt .. 
ehcti!.l!,'liit«lfef,r'(lltm.�\-;�ffotts �iod iotEg::al:!ld Vieb:�_a�e'� $tr,itl!g!� tdill�enili1'il.t<(,l:1fant!il)j' l)m�,la _l$ Al'l<U'ecrul� h<!W

.

s(ude�i:s: Sfaj'i.i1liii�:�o;;op.1ei elftQl\1)1.�jit plans a,io �n� li/it\f.in,stiti[tip\l�l �d/l'riih <illic�,t<i';P.rfi��!i"!fwiYa e�� 
ijat.f rei�i'f'>b �tlt9�i[og!e'S, Ana�U Jleitodfi reP.M• �nd t;Uoo!i®ted octi,eachsihite@es; � �Htail�li!lt Pl'.og\im, 

, l!•l>!)�j'l/:!.il•i's:a'll°il\Y.P.taivieosllro!fl�f'oli'�tlcin-ll!N���r�t1,1Jbltli!e.s,. 
Kj,)!'.Ji«Oiii�pstnrr4!1U• 
. •-:-O®foyed iMn.�i�e .re�ro.),ll'r!J.!iiU!!l\i; hlil!\i.¢1.-lllaf<s lha!:=b!)(!%\¢ enro]J!n�n� li_y_-over•� a�d linPf PV!!',v<>lWli'l! of 

-dl\lerse��inicpcipufalllm tiY,¾, 
� ,.Eilg;lgE4vi�i $.i-i.Jj_ro�W t1.wa�ff� unillel;iity<Jbj� a!Jdtna·nage.ci$lWatdii)\i{aign ertijjloyi!Q_gj\liri�gtahl

·to.,i{iiiQli�.l\nn�(��&�:w' $'$K · · · · 
: ... Eli'��y �ip!aineil 3Ml!al op,�ifng- i>a4g_i;\ in e.'l� eff. $45.oK' 'aliit'ln�� :iiggre&a!e 'coU�!ie :,rtij'19il!-.)'

�ijlti�ot.1 hY· µ�. 
· · · · · · · · · 

· .. ·· 

, . .,, sGq:asrul��a\u.igtd •�f<itiii'IP-nt r,eiion fi\i'tO r l'f ��mao lacliajatshlp:�v,ard� .•if<! \Jl!)ile honor� en roUmenfby:�. . . . . . '· . 

M:a�r. i,fAr� fA P�liJ}aAdml�M'�i,ion,Jri�r.o�t��,"-l�lqp�en�&A�mfrif�t!��! K.ell\l/Cl<:A'g:ti 1J111Ve1'>itt
·Jfa�he!o_r of '!ft!' In susilie;,s !\ilmi11Hl:l'litio11, M�llngl Kelitlltl<:i!·,S�{!: \Jhkr��ll)5 

ajot,! 9!'1llica.l;1911::,t£SOL,, res,)ier-L j'St!lle of Borlda:rem_p. r.cft,ca(fpn C.�ctl��tl�� G�-� �lJ 
'l,,l.eiri�el"�j;)iri�!1:P.� Plif Fr.atet�ify, $tlmla,{Shlp Chair ofBrltige'Bllliders Fo.iJil�ii.o(l';�etitef W,ith �Moo:oi 

Pi'e>ff.deilt In,: t.i$Ac��ss, MS'.eteel, a.f,tS, J�rit_!ib..ar/5!$.iAdoll<l Jni:leslgn;Mobe lllijstt,lt<i( 

i 
I 

I 
I 

! 

! 
\ 

t 



Jor�e E. Sousa Ill 
 

Education Admlnistra11on 

Hlgh[y experienced and pa.."9lonate managerfal professfonal delegated with ooordlnal!ng enrollment eci:l\/ftle$ and executing
educational administration activities. Establish ream training protocols and supervise team recruttmem. functions. Strategl
ca:ly pran buslne."" development lnltlat!ves and execute risk assessments. Direct financial evolutions and generate dynamic 
business reports.. leverage bilingual nuency In EngJfsh and Spanish to lmprove-sb'ateglc collaboration end develop muIt;. 
wltural buSiness environment. A.lee3 of fxpeltfse In.elude:

• S!tateglc /\cademic Planning

• New Process Oevalopmam

Financle.l Assessmcc-nt

Qual11;Yl'ltsKAs>.essment 

suategrc Relationship Buitdlng 

Team Training & Leader.,hfp 

Professional Experience 

• Report C-<1neratlon

• Project Management

Problem Resolution

Sou them Un Ivers� at Shrevepo!'I. • Shreveport, LA • 2018 lo present 

D!RJ;CTQR QF AOMISSIONS & REC!!UIIMENT 
Responsible for planning. developing, and directing admissions processes ar,d recitJl!:ment fnitiati\<es to pro..ide
prospectlve, C\lrre<it, and transfer student. with clear. current, and accurate information regarding ell undergradwte 
education programs from recrvitment t11rough enrollment. 

School Olstrlci: ot<lsl:eola County• Ki$Simmee, FL• 2Q1Gto 2018 

LIBERTY Hl<l:H TEACHER
Speameadsd comprehensive student insln.rotlon mvoMng dlvetse currrculum to bolster college and career preparation. 
fngaged with muttiwttural stuoents and cof!arorated cl=ly with scl'lool administrators ro foster crttical reading skilfs and 
Improve academic lnstructfonal 00111Jgnt. supported undemap"'5anted student populations lmd targeted complex subjea 
matters to fost&r probfem soMng sl<Jlls. 

saint Augus!l110's University• Ralelgl\ NC • 2007 to 2015 

DEAN OF ENRol.LMENTMANAG1:MeiT ANDl'.l!RECroR Of .ADMISSION 
Dilffled extensive university divisions including financial aid, admissiorss, and registrar's office. Bull! out strategic pert'or
mance assessment prooedures and aRooated hlgh-wiume department budgets to bolster operational development. Coor
dinated recruitment efforts and in�too web-based strategies to diss-..-mlnate branding materials and recrutt new stu-
dents. streamlined complex ervollmellt plans and engaged wtth lns!ltutional research omce to prod�ce more efl'8Cli'<e data 
researdl methodologie$. Analyzed perfodlc reports and eoord'111ated outreach stratsgies.Acted as academfc program liaison 
and personalty planned summer orientation advising responslbllltles. 
Key Accomplishments: 

• Deployed innovalive �ruitment and outreacti plaJlS that boosted anrollmeoi by over :15% and improve volume of di,.
verse academic population by 9%..

• Engaged wtth stal<Eholdere to establlsh uniVersit}I obJecttves and managed annual campaign an emplO;'e& diving pro
gram to produce annual IJ)fts up 133 $25K.

• Effectively malnt&ined �nnual operating budget in excess of $450K and ina-essed agg�gate college minority popl!Ja
tiOo t,y 1.3%.

• Successfulfy managed enrollment reporting for freshman scholal'Ship awards and drove honors enrollment by 15%.

Education & Training 

Master of Arts In Pu!Jlic Administration, International Devefopm.ant & Administration I V..entu� State Unlversi\y 
Bachelor of Alts In Business Admlnlsfratlon, Marl<etiogf Kentucky State University 

Oxford Certlficatlon:TESOl., TESL, TEFL I Stat& of Florida Temp. Education Celtificatlon Grades 6-12 
Member of Omega Psi Phi fratemlly, S�olarsblp Chair of Bridge Btlllders Four\Clatlon, Mentor with EMBOOI 











FOURTH AMENDMENT TO THE 

EMPLOYMENT CONTRACT OF HEAD FOOTBALL COACH 

DAWSON ODUMS 

 

This Fourth Amendment is made and entered into on the ___ day of January 2021 between the 
Board of Supervisors of Southern University and Agricultural and Mechanical College (herein 
referred to as “Board") and Dawson Odums (“Head Football Coach”). This Amendment, along 
with the previous amendments and the original employment contract entered into on the 10th day 
of January 2014 constitutes the Employment Contract of the Head Football Coach at Southern 
University in Baton Rouge, Louisiana (herein referred to as “University”) (collectively referred 
herein as “Parties”). This Fourth Amendment shall be effective on January 1, 2022 and shall 
remain in effect through December 31, 2022.  The Parties wish to amend their agreement in the 
following respects.  All other provisions not specifically addressed herein remain in effect. 

II.  Term 

a. The term of this agreement is for one (1) year commencing on January 1, 2022, and 
terminating on December 31, 2022. The Board has the option to extend this agreement 
for one (1) additional year. The option to extend this contract must be extended by the 
Board and Head Football Coach has the option to accept such extension.   
 

II.  Compensation and Employee Benefits 

a. Head Football Coach shall receive an annual base salary of $210,000 for satisfactory 
performance of the obligation in this agreement.  University shall pay Head Football 
Coach the annual base salary for the term of this agreement in equal amounts on a 
monthly basis.   
 
iv.  January 1, 2022 through December 31, 2022: $210,000.00. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this agreement, or caused this 
agreement to be executed on the date shown below.   

 

___________________________________  ___________________________________  
Dawson Odums  Date   Roman Banks   Date 
Head Coach      Director of Athletics 
 
 
 
___________________________________  ___________________________________  
Dr. Ray L. Belton  Date   Domoine Rutledge  Date 
President-Chancellor     Chairman, Board of Supervisors 
 

1/4/2021

1-6-21



FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE 

EMPLOYMENT CONTRACT OF HEAD BASKETBALL COACH 

SEAN WOODS 

 

This First Amendment is made and entered into on the ___ day of January 2021 between the Board 
of Supervisors of Southern University and Agricultural and Mechanical College (herein referred 
to as “Board") and Sean Woods (“Head Basketball Coach”). This Amendment and the original 
employment contract entered into on the 27th day of April 2018 constitutes the Employment 
Contract of the Head Basketball Coach at Southern University in Baton Rouge, Louisiana (herein 
referred to as “University”). This First Amendment shall be effective on May 1, 2021 and shall 
remain in effect through June 30, 2022.  The parties wish to amend the original contract in the 
following respects.  All other provisions contained in the original contract will remain in effect.    

II.  Term 

a.  The term of this agreement is for one (1) year commencing on May 1, 2021, and 
terminating on June 30, 2022. The Board has the option to extend this agreement for 
one (1) additional year. The option to extend this contract must be extended by the 
Board and Head Basketball Coach has the option to accept such extension.  

b.  All options to extend and/or renewals of this agreement must be offered by the Board 
and Head Basketball Coach has the option to accept such extension. Such extension 
and renewals shall be in writing and signed by both parties.  

 

III.  Compensation and Employee Benefits 

a.  For services and satisfactory performance of this agreement, SUBR shall pay Head 
Basketball Coach a base salary for the term of this agreement, on a monthly basis the 
following amounts:   

ii.  May 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022: $125,000.00. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this agreement, or caused this 
agreement to be executed on the date shown below.   

 

___________________________________  ___________________________________  
Sean Woods   Date   Roman Banks   Date 
Head Coach      Director of Athletics 
 
 
___________________________________  ___________________________________  
Dr. Ray L. Belton  Date   Domoine Rutledge  Date 
President-Chancellor     Chairman, Board of Supervisors 

1/4/2021

1-6-21



 

SECOND AMENDMENT TO THE 

EMPLOYMENT CONTRACT OF HEAD WOMEN’S BASKETBALL COACH 

CARLOS CAMILL FUNCHESS 

 

This Second Amendment is made and entered into on the ___ day of January 2021 between the 
Board of Supervisors of Southern University and Agricultural and Mechanical College (herein 
referred to as “Board") and Carlos Funchess (“Head Women’s Basketball Coach”). This 
Amendment along with the original employment contract entered into on the 2nd day of July 2018 
and the First Amendment dated July 1, 2019 constitutes the Employment Contract of the Head 
Women’s Basketball Coach at Southern University in Baton Rouge, Louisiana (herein referred to 
as “University”). This Second Amendment shall be effective on January 1, 2021 and shall remain 
in effect through June 30, 2024.  The parties wish to amend the original contract in the following 
respects.  All other provisions contained in the original contract will remain in effect.    

 

II.  Term 

a.  The term of this agreement is for one (1) year commencing on July 1, 2023, and 
terminating on June 30, 2024.  

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this agreement, or caused this 
agreement to be executed on the date shown below.   

 

 
___________________________________  ___________________________________  
Carlos Funchess  Date   Roman Banks   Date 
Head Coach      Director of Athletics 
 
 
 
___________________________________  ___________________________________  
Dr. Ray L. Belton  Date   Domoine Rutledge  Date 
President-Chancellor     Chairman, Board of Supervisors 
 

1/4/2021

1/6/21





































CAMPUS: SUS 

REQUEST li'QR LEA VI!: 0.lf ABS.ENCE FORM 
SOUTHERN lillc'IV:EN.SI'l'Y SYSTEM 

SUBR SULAC SUAREC SUNO SUSLA ....:X
"--

-

Name of Tunploycc: �D=r-=J;;,;o�h;;,;n�A�l;;;;ak:,;,_ __________ _ SSN:  

Address:  

Title: Professor and Head of Biolo�y Deparlmenl 

Pho.ne:  

Highest Degree: _,P,,,b=D=·-----
Birth Date: _ _ _ _ _  _

NO. OF CONSECUTIVE FISCAL YEARS AC'ffV.ls SKKVICI!: AT nus INSTITUTION: �1=9� _ 

EFFECTIVE DATE OF LEA VE: J11n 12, 2021

Purpose ofleave Requested ( click one): 

ANTICIPATED AETURN DATE: 

a. Professional or Cultural Improvement (Must have prior approval from Chaucelkrr)
b. Re:;t aml Recuperation (Statement from two (2) physicians(• must be attached)
c. Independent Study or Research Statement
d. Military
c. x Sick Leave
•must be attending physician

TYPE OJ:" L�VE REQUESTED (check one): 
a. with pay -="

.:...
· ___ _ 

b. without pay

LENGTH OF LF.AVF.. RRQUESTED: (No. ofweeks,not to exceed 36 weeks) 14 weeks 

MANNER IN WHICH THIS LEA VE, IF GRANTED, WILL BE SPENT: 

Mav 15,20lt 

Medical treatmeot/Physical}'�erap;r. ___________________________ _ 
***••·••*******�*�******�******••••********·***********••*•****'**•****•*•*••*••�···••**** 

DO YO\; WISH TO RETAIN FRINGE BENEFITS? (if yes, to1al contribution of premium must be paid to 
Human Resonrces/ComptroDer•s Office in Advante) 

Teacher Retirement Yes No 1' __ 
State Retirement Y cs No __ !L_ 

Group Insurance 
Elected Supplemental Benefits 

Yes x 
Yes � 

No 
No 

1 hereby agree to comply with the provisions of the Southern University Board of Supervisors' 
policy on leaves of absence. .,-,.-,.,......_,, / 

10/27/2020 . . ··- ____ L(! o#fff!jl/ 
DATE SfGNATIJRE OF APPLICANT 

*•=�******•�••*************************************•**********•*••*•�*·••****************•* 



FY21 Budget Actual Projected Total FY21

Over/(Under) 

Budget

% Actual 

to Budget

Revenues

General Fund Direct 43,442,284$    24,321,147$    19,121,137$    43,442,284$    -$     56.0%

Statutory Dedicated 4,228,516 844,109 3,384,407 4,228,516 - 20.0%

Federal 3,654,209 1,245,350 2,408,859 3,654,209 - 34.1%

Self Generated

  Tuition - Fall 2020 34,262,460           32,357,912           769,500 33,127,412           (1,135,048)            94.4%

  Tuition - Spring 2021 31,256,081           13,629,376           15,478,608           29,107,983           (2,148,098)            43.6%

  Tuition - Summer 6,993,497 1,882,755 5,174,686 7,057,441 63,944 26.9%

  Out-of-State Fees 11,910,932           9,955,994 2,303,906 12,259,899           348,967 83.6%

  Other 16,682,523           6,224,856 8,869,648 15,094,504           (1,588,019)            37.3%

Interagency Transfer 3,028,515 935,960 2,599,327 3,535,287 506,772 30.9%

Total Revenues 155,459,017$    91,397,458$    60,110,078$    151,507,535$    (3,951,481)$     58.8%

Expenditures 

  Salaries 74,712,941$    31,640,768$    42,232,039$    73,872,808$    (840,133)$     42.3%

  Other Compensation 319,377 72,500 246,877 319,377 - 22.7%

  Related Benefits 34,139,650           13,458,365           19,806,946           33,265,311           (874,339) 39.4%

Total Personal Services 109,171,968$    45,171,634$    62,285,862$    107,457,496$    (1,714,472)$     41.4%

  Travel 1,059,510 19,580 823,431 843,011 (216,499) 1.8%

  Operating Services 14,339,492           6,944,434 6,519,843 13,464,277           (875,215) 48.4%

  Supplies 1,900,900 453,655 951,459 1,405,114 (495,786) 23.9%

Total Operating Expenses 17,299,902$    7,417,669$     8,294,733$     15,712,402$    (1,587,500)$     42.9%

  Professional Services 2,544,772 703,312 1,468,023 2,171,335 (373,437) 27.6%

  Other Charges 10,714,822           77,807 7,868,614 7,946,421 (2,768,401)            0.7%

  Debt Services

  Interagency Transfers 6,238,234 376,271 5,861,963 6,238,234 - 6.0%

Total Other Charges 19,497,828$    1,157,390$     15,198,600$    16,355,990$    (3,141,838)$     5.9%

  General Acquisitions 785,382 24,116 778,267 802,382 17,000 3.1%

  Library Acquisitions 562,649 183,082 379,567 562,649 - 32.5%

  Major Repairs - - - - - 

Total Acquisitions/Major Repairs 1,348,031$     207,198$     1,157,833$     1,365,031$     17,000$     15.4%

  Scholarships 8,141,288 7,859,217 2,757,400 10,616,617           2,475,329 96.5%

Total Expenditures 155,459,017$    61,813,108$    89,694,428$    151,507,536$    (3,951,481)$     39.8%

Southern University System

General Operating Budget Financial Statement 

For Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2021

As of  November 30, 2020 

Page 1



FY21 Budget Actual Projected Total FY21

Over/(Under) 

Budget

% Actual 

to Budget

Revenues

General Fund Direct 3,199,565$           2,463,095$           736,470$              3,199,565$           -$                             77.0%

Statutory Dedicated

Federal

Self Generated

    Tuition - Fall 2020

    Tuition - Spring 2021

    Tuition - Summer

    Out-of-State Fees

    Other

Interagency Transfer

Total Revenues 3,199,565$         2,463,095$         736,470$             3,199,565$         -$                             77.0%

Expenditures 

  Salaries 1,649,530$           669,194$              980,336$              1,649,530$           -$                             40.6%

  Other Compensation 88,000                   51,667                   36,333                   88,000                   -                               58.7%

  Related Benefits 769,942                 225,271                 544,671                 769,942                 -                               29.3%

Total Personal Services 2,507,472$         946,132$             1,561,340$         2,507,472$         -$                             37.7%

  Travel 185,000                 1,426                      183,574                 185,000                 -                               0.8%

  Operating Services 171,100                 42,114                   128,986                 171,100                 -                               24.6%

  Supplies 80,000                   10,359                   69,641                   80,000                   -                               12.9%

Total Operating Expenses 436,100$             53,899$               382,201$             436,100$             -$                             12.4%

  Professional Services 94,000                   -                               94,000                   94,000                   -                               0.0%

  Other Charges 136,993                 -                               136,993                 136,993                 -                               0.0%

  Debt Services

  Interagency Transfers

Total Other Charges 230,993$             -$                             230,993$             230,993$             -$                             0.0%

  General Acquisitions 25,000                   2,565                      22,435                   25,000                   -                               10.3%

  Library Acquisitions

  Major Repairs

Total Acquisitions/Major Repairs 25,000$               2,565$                  22,435$               25,000$               -$                             10.3%

  Scholarships

Total Expenditures 3,199,565$         1,002,596$         2,196,969$         3,199,565$         -$                             31.3%

Southern University Board and System Administration

General Operating Budget Financial Statement 

For Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2021

As of  November 30, 2020 

Page 2



FY21 Budget Actual Projected Total FY21

Over/(Under) 

Budget

% Actual 

to Budget

Revenues

General Fund Direct 18,275,725$        9,671,808$           8,603,917$           18,275,725$        -$                             52.9%

Statutory Dedicated 1,593,248             369,779                 1,223,469             1,593,248             -                               23.2%

Federal -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               

Self Generated

    Tuition - Fall 2020 21,709,761           20,483,728           -                               20,483,728           (1,226,033)            94.4%

    Tuition - Spring 2021 19,487,148           12,884,804           5,467,781             18,352,585           (1,134,563)            66.1%

    Tuition - Summer 4,963,498             1,312,176             3,858,353             5,170,529             207,031                 26.4%

    Out-of-State Fees 8,349,603             7,481,560             1,486,383             8,967,943             618,340                 89.6%

    Other 7,671,356             2,896,547             5,643,612             8,540,159             868,803                 37.8%

Interagency Transfer 3,028,515             935,960                 2,599,327             3,535,287             506,772                 30.9%

Total Revenues 85,078,854$      56,036,363$      28,882,842$      84,919,204$      (159,650)$           65.9%

Expenditures 

  Salaries 40,572,820$        17,512,456$        21,449,656$        38,962,112$        (1,610,708)$         43.2%

  Other Compensation 181,377                 -                               181,377                 181,377                 -                               0.0%

  Related Benefits 18,747,613           8,007,523             9,656,390             17,663,913           (1,083,700)            42.7%

Total Personal Services 59,501,810$      25,519,980$      31,287,422$      56,807,402$      (2,694,408)$       42.9%

  Travel 288,210                 8,264                      91,834                   100,098                 (188,112)               2.9%

  Operating Services 7,662,277             3,954,222             3,816,513             7,770,735             108,458                 51.6%

  Supplies 915,911                 274,438                 217,810                 492,247                 (423,664)               30.0%

Total Operating Expenses 8,866,398$         4,236,923$         4,126,157$         8,363,080$         (503,318)$           47.8%

  Professional Services 1,126,480             150,338                 597,290                 747,628                 (378,852)               13.3%

  Other Charges 3,805,700             68,360                   4,526,311             4,594,671             788,971                 1.8%

  Debt Services -                               

  Interagency Transfers 4,017,497             -                               4,017,497             4,017,497             -                               0.0%

Total Other Charges 8,949,677$         218,698$             9,141,098$         9,359,796$         410,119$             2.4%

  General Acquisitions 582,032                 -                               612,032                 612,032                 30,000                   0.0%

  Library Acquisitions 137,649                 60,312                   77,337                   137,649                 -                               43.8%

  Major Repairs -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               

Total Acquisitions/Major Repairs 719,681$             60,312$               689,369$             749,681$             30,000$               8.4%

  Scholarships 7,041,288             7,339,555             2,299,690             9,639,245             2,597,957             104.2%

Total Expenditures 85,078,854$      37,375,468$      47,543,736$      84,919,204$      (159,650)$           43.9%
   

Southern University Baton Rouge Campus

General Operating Budget Financial Statement 

For Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2021

As of  November 30, 2020 

 The Southern University Baton Rouge Campus have allocated $2.2 million in CARES Act funds to ensure the budget remains balanced and operations 

continue due to revenue shortfall.

Page 3



FY21 Budget Actual Projected Total FY21

Over/(Under) 

Budget

% Actual 

to Budget

Revenues

General Fund Direct 3,735,319$           2,091,217$           1,644,102$           3,735,319$           -$                             56.0%

Statutory Dedicated 172,939                 39,589                   133,350                 172,939                 -                               22.9%

Federal -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               

Self Generated

    Tuition - Fall 2020 3,823,146             4,583,457             4,583,457             760,311                 119.9%

    Tuition - Spring 2021 3,499,336             -                               3,499,336             3,499,336             -                               0.0%

    Tuition - Summer 700,000                 277,704                 422,296                 700,000                 -                               39.7%

    Out-of-State Fees 2,658,500             2,112,611             545,890                 2,658,500             -                               79.5%

    Other 3,286,762             1,936,918             1,349,844             3,286,762             -                               58.9%

Interagency Transfer

Total Revenues 17,876,002$      11,041,496$      7,594,817$         18,636,313$      760,311$             61.8%

Expenditures 

  Salaries 9,471,530$           4,152,954$           5,869,526$           10,022,480$        550,950$              43.8%

  Other Compensation -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               

  Related Benefits 3,609,686             1,312,438             2,506,610             3,819,047             209,361                 36.4%

Total Personal Services 13,081,216$      5,465,391$         8,376,136$         13,841,527$      760,311$             41.8%

  Travel 385,000                 8,125                      376,875                 385,000                 -                               2.1%

  Operating Services 1,690,629             387,304                 1,303,325             1,690,629             -                               22.9%

  Supplies 250,000                 57,445                   192,555                 250,000                 -                               23.0%

Total Operating Expenses 2,325,629$         452,873$             1,872,756$         2,325,629$         -$                             19.5%

  Professional Services 1,220,590             508,192                 712,399                 1,220,590             -                               41.6%

  Other Charges 432,027                 -                               432,027                 432,027                 -                               0.0%

  Debt Services -                               -                          -                               -                               

  Interagency Transfers 366,540                 -                               366,540                 366,540                 -                               0.0%

Total Other Charges 2,019,157$         508,192$             1,510,966$         2,019,157$         -$                             25.2%

  General Acquisitions -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               

  Library Acquisitions 250,000                 113,012                 136,988                 250,000                 -                               45.2%

  Major Repairs -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               

Total Acquisitions/Major Repairs 250,000$             113,012$             136,988$             250,000$             -$                             45.2%

  Scholarships 200,000                 183,757                 16,243                   200,000                 -                               91.9%

Total Expenditures 17,876,002$      6,723,225$         11,913,088$      18,636,313$      760,311$             37.6%

Southern University Law Center

General Operating Budget Financial Statement 

For Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2021

As of  November 30, 2020 

Page 4



FY21 Budget Actual Projected Total FY21

Over/(Under) 

Budget

% Actual 

to Budget

Revenues

General Fund Direct 8,158,721$           4,567,655$           3,591,066$           8,158,721$           -$                             56.0%

Statutory Dedicated 502,799                 113,110                 389,689                 502,799                 -                               22.5%

Federal -                               -                               -                               

Self Generated

    Tuition - Fall 2020 4,851,700             3,839,287             769,500                 4,608,788             (242,913)               79.1%

    Tuition - Spring 2021 4,577,842             (38,186)                  4,127,493             4,089,307             (488,535)               -0.8%

    Tuition - Summer 429,999                 (14,038)                  444,037                 429,999                 -                               -3.3%

    Out-of-State Fees 352,829                 156,196                 196,633                 352,829                 0                              44.3%

    Other 4,735,175             1,323,287             1,430,567             2,753,854             (1,981,321)            27.9%

Interagency Transfer

Total Revenues 23,609,065$      9,947,313$         10,948,984$      20,896,297$      (2,712,767)$       42.1%

Expenditures 

  Salaries 10,111,886$        4,158,676$           6,172,835$           10,331,511$        219,625$              41.1%

  Other Compensation -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               

  Related Benefits 4,740,079             1,817,827             2,922,252             4,740,079             -                               38.4%

Total Personal Services 14,851,965$      5,976,504$         9,095,087$         15,071,590$      219,625$             40.2%

  Travel 37,000                   -                               37,000                   37,000                   -                               0.0%

  Operating Services 2,285,294             1,315,568             969,726                 2,285,294             -                               57.6%

  Supplies 285,500                 37,082                   248,418                 285,500                 -                               13.0%

Total Operating Expenses 2,607,794$         1,352,650$         1,255,144$         2,607,794$         -$                             51.9%

  Professional Services -                               13,380                   (13,380)                  -                               -                               

  Other Charges 4,268,732             9,969                      1,326,371             1,336,340             (2,932,392)            0.2%

  Debt Services -                               

  Interagency Transfers 1,105,574             376,271                 729,303                 1,105,574             -                               34.0%

Total Other Charges 5,374,306$         399,620$             2,042,294$         2,441,914$         (2,932,392)$       7.4%

  General Acquisitions -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               0.0%

  Library Acquisitions 175,000                 9,758                      165,242                 175,000                 -                               5.6%

  Major Repairs -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               

Total Acquisitions/Major Repairs 175,000$             9,758$                  165,242$             175,000$             -$                             5.6%

  Scholarships 600,000                 246,142                 353,858                 600,000                 -                               41.0%

Total Expenditures 23,609,065$      7,984,674$         12,911,624$      20,896,298$      (2,712,767)$       33.8%

Southern University New Orleans Campus

General Operating Budget Financial Statement 

For Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2021

As of  November 30, 2020 

Page 5



FY21 Budget Actual Projected Total FY21

Over/(Under) 

Budget

% Actual 

to Budget

Revenues

General Fund Direct 5,158,497$           2,776,014$           2,382,483$           5,158,497$           -$                             53.8%

Statutory Dedicated 162,060                 39,589                   122,471                 162,060                 -                               24.4%

Federal

Self Generated

    Tuition - Fall 2020 3,877,853             3,451,439             -                               3,451,439             (426,414)               89.0%

    Tuition - Spring 2021 3,691,755             782,757                 2,383,998             3,166,755             (525,000)               21.2%

    Tuition - Summer 900,000                 306,913                 450,000                 756,913                 (143,087)               34.1%

    Out-of-State Fees 550,000                 205,627                 75,000                   280,627                 (269,373)               37.4%

    Other 989,230                 68,103                   445,626                 513,729                 (475,501)               6.9%

Interagency Transfer

Total Revenues 15,329,395$      7,630,442$         5,859,578$         13,490,020$      (1,839,375)$       49.8%

Expenditures 

  Salaries 7,477,302$           3,232,276$           4,245,026$           7,477,302$           -$                             43.2%

  Other Compensation -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               0.0%

  Related Benefits 3,693,095             1,382,628             2,310,467             3,693,095             -                               37.4%

Total Personal Services 11,170,397$      4,614,904$         6,555,493$         11,170,397$      -$                             41.3%

  Travel 43,300                   675                         14,238                   14,913                   (28,387)                  1.6%

  Operating Services 2,186,888             1,026,631             176,584                 1,203,215             (983,673)               46.9%

  Supplies 145,200                 48,135                   24,943                   73,078                   (72,122)                  33.2%

Total Operating Expenses 2,375,388$         1,075,441$         215,765$             1,291,206$         (1,084,182)$       45.3%

  Professional Services 59,500                   27,402                   37,513                   64,915                   5,415                      46.1%

  Other Charges 647,487                 (1,239)                    23,746                   22,507                   (624,980)               -0.2%

  Debt Services

  Interagency Transfers 748,623                 -                               748,623                 748,623                 -                               0.0%

Total Other Charges 1,455,610$         26,163$               809,882$             836,045$             (619,565)$           1.8%

  General Acquisitions 28,000                   -                               15,000                   15,000                   (13,000)                  0.0%

  Library Acquisitions -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               0.0%

  Major Repairs -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               0.0%

Total Acquisitions/Major Repairs 28,000$               -$                             15,000$               15,000$               (13,000)$              0.0%

  Scholarships 300,000                 89,763                   87,609                   177,372                 (122,628)               29.9%

Total Expenditures 15,329,395$      5,806,271$         7,683,749$         13,490,020$      (1,839,375)$       37.9%
   

Southern University Shreveport Campus

General Operating Budget Financial Statement 

For Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2021

As of  November 30, 2020 

 The Southern University Shreveport Campus have allocated $2.6 million in CARES Act funds to ensure the budget remains balanced and operations 
continue due to revenue shortfall.

Page 6



FY21 Budget Actual Projected Total FY21

Over/(Under) 

Budget

% Actual 

to Budget

Revenues

General Fund Direct 4,914,457$           2,751,358$           2,163,099$           4,914,457$           -$                             56.0%

Statutory Dedicated 1,797,470             282,042                 1,515,428             1,797,470             -                               15.7%

Federal 3,654,209             1,245,350             2,408,859             3,654,209             -                               34.1%

Self Generated

    Tuition - Fall 2020

    Tuition - Spring 2021

    Tuition - Summer

    Out-of-State Fees

    Other

Interagency Transfer

Total Revenues 10,366,136$      4,278,750$         6,087,386$         10,366,136$      -$                             41.3%

Expenditures 

  Salaries 5,429,873$           1,915,212$           3,514,661$           5,429,873$           -$                             35.3%

  Other Compensation 50,000                   20,833                   29,167                   50,000                   -                               41.7%

  Related Benefits 2,579,235             712,678                 1,866,557             2,579,235             -                               27.6%

Total Personal Services 8,059,108$         2,648,723$         5,410,385$         8,059,108$         -$                             32.9%

  Travel 121,000                 1,091                      119,909                 121,000                 -                               0.9%

  Operating Services 343,304                 218,595                 124,709                 343,304                 -                               63.7%

  Supplies 224,289                 26,197                   198,092                 224,289                 -                               11.7%

Total Operating Expenses 688,593$             245,883$             442,710$             688,593$             -$                             35.7%

  Professional Services 44,202                   4,000                      40,202                   44,202                   -                               9.0%

  Other Charges 1,423,883             717                         1,423,166             1,423,883             -                               0.1%

  Debt Services

  Interagency Transfers -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               0.0%

Total Other Charges 1,468,085$         4,717$                  1,463,368$         1,468,085$         -$                             0.3%

  General Acquisitions 150,350                 21,551                   128,800                 150,350                 -                               14.3%

  Library Acquisitions

  Major Repairs

Total Acquisitions/Major Repairs 150,350$             21,551$               128,800$             150,350$             -$                             14.3%

  Scholarships

Total Expenditures 10,366,136$      2,920,874$         7,445,262$         10,366,136$      -$                             28.2%

Southern University Agricultural Research and Extension Center

General Operating Budget Financial Statement 

For Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2021

As of  November 30, 2020 

Page 7
















	Agenda
	Minutes 112020
	SUNO/City of NOLA MOU
	SUNO/CA Community College MOU
	SUNO/Wisner Grant CEA
	SULC/Education Farm MOU
	SULC Pharoah's Conclave
	SUSLA/GOV
	SUNO Millie Charles
	SUSLA Distance Ed Policy
	SUSLA Class Attendance Policy
	SUBR Policy on Endowed Faculty and Chairs 
	Distinguished Jurist of Law and Justice Professorship
	SUSLA Market Salary Adjustments
	Personnel Actions 
	SUBR Coaches Extension
	SULC One-Year Salary Stipend
	SUSLA - Alak_FMLA
	Interim Financial Reports
	Facilities Planning Project Updates



